
 

 

Regular Council Meeting 

May 13, 2024 

Executive Summary 
 

Item #  Summary 

9A‐B  Description: Items for Action by Unanimous Consent 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the consent agenda 
as presented. 
 

10A  Description: Hastings Pride Committee Festival 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve, under the direction 
of staff, the Hastings Pride Committee to sell merchandise and 
accept donations from 1:00 PM until 6:00 PM on Saturday June 
29, 2024, at the Thornapple Plaza. 
 

10B  Description: Resolution 2024‐11: Budget Fiscal Year 2024‐2025 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to adopt Resolution 2024‐11 to 
enact the General Appropriations Act for Fiscal Year 2024/2025, 
and to approve the operating budgets for said year, and to 
establish the property tax millage rates to support the budget. 
 

10C  Description: Resolution 2024‐12: LDFA 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to adopt Resolution 2024‐12 to 
dissolve the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) as 
recommended by the LDFA Board per LDFA Resolution 01‐2024 
adopted April 25, 2024. 



 

Item #  Summary 

10D  Description: Resolution 2024‐13: MDOT Agreement 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to adopt Resolution 2024‐13 
authorizing the Mayor and Deputy Clerk to sign the MDOT 
agreement for the pedestrian island on M‐43. 
 

10E  Description: DIRECTV Video Franchise Agreement 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the video franchise 
agreement with DirectTV, LLC for a ten‐year period with 
a video service provider fee of ___%. 
 

10F  Description: Fish Hatchery Park Restroom Building 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the proposal from 
Bultsma Construction Company to build the Fish Hatchery Park 
restroom building for a total price of $447,058.20. 
 

10G  Description: Alum Tank Design 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the proposal from 
Infrastructure Alternatives, Inc. (IAI) for design services to 
improve the Alum Tank at the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
(WWTP) for $12,900. 
 

10H  Description: Cemetery Wickham Contract 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the proposed three 
(3) year contract extension with Wickham Cemetery 
Care, LLC, for maintenance and sexton services at Riverside 
Cemetery, for the original 2018 price of $1,605.77 per week or 
$83,500 per year. 
 



 

Item #  Summary 

10I  Description: Cemetery Landscaping 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the proposal from 
Harder & Warner to provide improved landscaping at the 
Riverside Cemetery’s north entrance for a sum not to exceed 
$5,523.90. 
 

10J  Description: Michigan Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Association 
Agreement 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to authorize the Michigan 
Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Association Agreement and the 
City of Hastings’ participation therein. 
 

10K  Description: Public Hearing, Special Assessment District 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to set a public hearing on May 
28, 2024, at 7:00 PM to determine the necessity of a special 
assessment district for downtown parking areas. 

 



Council Agenda  Page 1 of 3 May 13, 2024 

City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

  

 
City Council Agenda 

May 13, 2024 
 
 

1. Regular meeting called to order at 7:00 PM 

2. Roll call 

3. Pledge to the flag 

*         4. Approval of the agenda 

*         5. Approval of the minutes of the April 22, 2024, workshop and regular meeting 

√        6. Public Hearings: 

*                   A. Accept public comment regarding the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 operating budget 
and millage rates. 

7. Public Comment: 

8. Formal Recognitions and Presentations: 

A. Mayor Tossava to present the American Legion Poppy Days Proclamation to 
Darlene Hopkins, VP of the American Legion auxiliary. 

B. Mayor Tossava to present the Motorcycle Awareness Month Proclamation to 
Joshua Winkelstein. 

C. Presentation from Dave Hatfield, Barry County Commissioner. 

√        9. Items for Action by Unanimous Consent:  

*                   A. Consider request from American Legion Post 45 Parade Chairman, James 
Atkinson, to hold its annual Memorial Day Parade on Monday, May 27, 2024, 
starting at 9:30 AM. 

*                   B. Receive and place on file twelve (12) invoices totaling $196,897.30 as detailed 
in attachments.  

√        10. Items of Business: 

*                   A. Consider, under the direction of staff, the request from the Hastings Pride 
Committee to sell merchandise and accept donations from 1:00 PM until 6:00 PM 
on Saturday June 29, 2024, at the Thornapple Plaza. 



Council Agenda  Page 2 of 3 May 13, 2024 

*                   B. Consider adopting Resolution 2024-11 to enact the General Appropriations Act 
for Fiscal Year 2024/2025, and to approve the operating budgets for said year, 
and to establish the property tax millage rates to support the budget. 

*                   C. Consider adopting Resolution 2024-12 to dissolve the Local Development 
Finance Authority (LDFA) as recommended by the LDFA Board per LDFA 
Resolution 01-2024 adopted April 25, 2024. 

*                   D. Consider adopting Resolution 2024-13 authorizing the Mayor and Deputy 
Clerk to sign the MDOT agreement for the pedestrian island on M-43. 

*                   E. Consider approval of a video franchise agreement with DirectTV, LLC for a ten-
year period and set the video service provider fee. 

*                   F. Consider approval of the proposal from Bultsma Construction Company to build 
the Fish Hatchery Park restroom building for a total price of $447,058.20. 

*                   G. Consider approval of the proposal from Infrastructure Alternatives, Inc. (IAI) for 
design services to improve the Alum Tank at the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
(WWTP) for $12,900. 

*                   H. Consider approval of the proposed three (3) year contract extension with 
Wickham Cemetery Care, LLC, for maintenance and sexton services at Riverside 
Cemetery, for the original 2018 price of $1,605.77 per week or $83,500 per 
year. 

*                   I. Consider approval of the proposal from Harder & Warner to provide improved 
landscaping at the Riverside Cemetery’s north entrance for a sum not to exceed 
$5,523.90. 

*                   J. Consider authorizing the Michigan Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Association 
Agreement and the City of Hastings’ participation therein. 

*                   K. Consider setting a public hearing for May 28, 2024, at 7:00 PM to determine the 
necessity of a special assessment district for downtown parking areas. 

11. Staff Presentations and Policy Discussions (None) 

12. City Manager Report: 

*                   A. Public Services Director Tate Monthly Report 
*                   B. Fire Chief Jordan Monthly Report 
*                   C. Library Director Hemerling Monthly Report 

√        13. Reports and Communications: 

*                   A. April 18, 2024, Draft DDA Minutes 
*                   B. April 25, 2024, Draft LDFA Minutes 
*                   C. May 1, 2024, Draft Library Board Minutes 
*                   D. May 2024 Calendar 

14. Public Comment: 

15. Mayor and Council comment: 



Council Agenda  Page 3 of 3 May 13, 2024 

16. Adjourn 

 
 
* Items with enclosures. 
√ Motion under agenda heading requires roll call vote. 
 
 

Guidelines for Public Comment 
 

Public Comment is welcomed and appreciated. Please follow these simple guidelines to ensure all have 
an opportunity to be heard. 
 
All comments and questions will be made through the chair. All comments will be made in a courteous 
and civil manner; profanity and personal attacks will not be tolerated. Please limit the length of your 
comments to 3 minutes. If you are a member of a group, please appoint a spokesperson to speak on 
behalf of the group (those speaking on behalf of a group may be provided additional time). Please 
state your name before offering comment. 



4411

Council Workshop Minutes April 22, 2024 

City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

City Council Workshop Minutes 
April 22, 2024 

1. Workshop called to order at 6:00 PM

2. Roll call

Present at roll call were Barlow, Brehm, Furrow, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and
Tossava.

City staff and appointees present: Moyer-Cale, Bever, Boulter, Hemerling, Jordan, King,
and Tate.

Councilmember Bowers arrived at 6:52 PM.

3. Pledge to the flag

4. Approval of the agenda

Motion by Brehm, with support from McLean, to approve the agenda as presented.

All ayes. Motion carried.

5. City Manager Sarah Moyer-Cale presented the proposed FY 2024-2025 Operating
Budget.

6. Council Questions: None.

Questions from Furrow, Jarvis, Resseguie, and Tossava.

7. Open Public Discussion: None.

8. Adjourn

Motion by McLean, with support from Resseguie, to adjourn at 6:57 PM.

All ayes. Motion carried.

Read and Approved: 

_________________________ 
David J. Tossava, Mayor 

___________________________ 
Amy Hubbell, Deputy City Clerk 



4412 
 

Council Minutes  April 22, 2024 

City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

  

 
City Council Minutes 

April 22, 2024 
 
 

1. Regular meeting called to order at 7:02 PM 

2. Roll call 

Present at roll call were Barlow, Bowers, Brehm, Furrow, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, 
Resseguie, and Tossava. 
 
City staff and appointees present: Moyer-Cale, Bever, Boulter, Hemerling, Jordan, King, 
and Tate. 
 

3. Pledge to the flag 

*         4. Approval of the agenda 

Motion by Barlow, with support from McLean, to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
All ayes. Motion carried. 
 

*         5. Approval of the minutes of the April 8, 2024, regular meeting 

Motion by Brehm, with support from Resseguie, to approve the minutes of the April 8, 
2024, regular meeting. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Bowers, Brehm, Furrow, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and Tossava. 
Nays: None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

√        6. Public Hearings: (None) 

7. Public Comment: 

8. Formal Recognitions and Presentations: 

A. Presentation from Dave Hatfield, Barry County Commissioner. 

Questions and comments from Barlow and McLean. 
 

√        9. Items for Action by Unanimous Consent:  

*                   A. Accept a donation from the Baum Family Foundation in the amount of $50,000 
for Hastings Live Performances at Thornapple Plaza. 



4413 
 

Council Minutes  April 22, 2024 

Motion by Brehm, with support from Barlow, to accept a donation from the Baum 
Family Foundation in the amount of $50,000 for Hastings Live Performances at 
Thornapple Plaza. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Bowers, Brehm, Furrow, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays: None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

*                   B. Receive and place on file 20 invoices totaling $516,528.77 as detailed in 
attachments. 

Motion by McLean, with support from Jarvis, to receive and place on file 20 
invoices totaling $516,528.77 as detailed in attachments. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Bowers, Brehm, Furrow, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays: None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 

 
√        10. Items of Business: 

*                   A. Consider approval of a letter of support for a USDA grant being submitted by the 
Barry Community Foundation as presented. 

Motion by Resseguie, with support from Furrow, to approve a letter of support 
for a USDA grant being submitted by the Barry Community Foundation as 
presented. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Bowers, Brehm, Furrow, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays: None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

*                   B. Consider approval of a proposal for Riverside Cemetery memorial phase one 
project services by MCSA Group, Inc. in the amount of $18,270. 

Question from Bowers. 
 
Motion by Nesbitt, with support from McLean, to approve a proposal for 
Riverside Cemetery memorial phase one project services by MCSA Group, Inc. in 
the amount of $18,270. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Bowers, Brehm, Furrow, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays: None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 



4414 
 

Council Minutes  April 22, 2024 

*                   C. Consider scheduling a public hearing to accept comment regarding the 2024-
2025 operating budget and millage rates on Monday, May 13, 2024, at 7:00 PM. 

Motion by Resseguie, with support from Jarvis, to schedule a public hearing to 
accept comment regarding the 2024-2025 operating budget and millage rates on 
Monday, May 13, 2024, at 7:00 PM. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Bowers, Brehm, Furrow, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays: None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

11. Staff Presentations and Policy Discussions (None) 

12. City Manager Report: 

City Manager Moyer-Cale addressed council. 
 

*                   A. Police Chief Boulter presented his monthly report. 

Comments from Police Chief Boulter. 
 
Questions and comments from Jarvis and Tossava. 
 

*                   B. City Clerk/Treasurer Bever presented his monthly financial reports. 
*                   C. Community Development Director King presented his monthly report. 

√        13. Reports and Communications: 

*                   A. March 13, 2024, Riverside Cemetery Preservation Advisory Board Minutes 

Motion by Barlow, with support from McLean, to accept and place on file item 
13.A. 
 
All ayes. Motion carried. 

 
14. Public Comment: 

Dr. Ken Merriman – Riverside cemetery design 
 

15. Mayor and Council comment: 

Comments from Barlow, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and Tossava. 
 

16. Adjourn 

Motion by McLean, with support from Resseguie, to adjourn at 7:29 PM. 
 
All ayes. Motion carried. 
 
 



4415 

Council Minutes April 22, 2024 

Read and Approved: 

________________________ 
David J. Tossava, Mayor 

___________________________ 
Amy Hubbell, Deputy City Clerk 



8.A



8.B



9.A



Summary - City of Hastings Invoices
City Council Meeting

May 13, 2024

No. Vendor Amount Description (with date paid)
1 Landscape Forms Inc $55,870.00 5/2/2024 Streetscape seating, tables, recycling and litter 

receptacles
2 Hastings Michigan Ave LLC $35,785.79 5/2/2024 Brownfields Payment Incentives/Tax Refund for 

128 Lofts
3 Advantage Plumbing and Drain $16,680.00 5/2/2024 Lead Line Replacements
4 MCSA Group, Inc. $15,774.00 4/17/2024 Fish Hatchery Park Restroom Design
5 Crystal Flash $13,399.32 4/17/2024 Gasoline
6 WaterSolve, LLC $11,880.00 5/2/2024 WWTP - 8 450 lb drums of polymer
7 Detroit Salt Company $9,897.27 4/17/2024 Rock Salt for roads
8 Axon Enterprise Inc. $9,810.19 5/2/2024 Body Cameras, licenses, Evidence Storage
9 EJ USA, Inc. $8,582.94 5/2/2024 Fire Hydrants
10 Detroit Salt Company $6,541.81 5/2/2024 Rock Salt for roads
11 Professional Pavement Products Inc. $6,480.98 4/17/2024 Modular Median for Road
12 W. Soule & Co. $6,195.00 4/17/2024 Plug Valve Replacement
12 Invoices $196,897.30

ATTACHMENT ‐ AGENDA ITEM 9C

9.B



































Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Mayor Tossava and City Council 

From: Dan King 

Subject: Hastings Pride Committee 

Meeting Date:  May 13, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve, under the direction of staff, the Hastings Pride Committee to sell 

merchandise and accept donations from 1:00 PM until 6:00 PM on Saturday June 29, 2024, at 

the Thornapple Plaza. 

Background Information:  

The Hastings Pride Committee will be hosting a festival at the Thornapple Plaza that will feature 

live music and entertainment utilizing either bands or a recorded music via a public address 

system. The Committee will have merchandise available for purchase as well as requesting 

funds via donation for local charities. Staff has reviewed the request with no concerns. 

Permission for donations and sales is necessary as Section 58‐82 (j) of the Municipal Code 

states, “No vending or solicitation of funds is permitted at an entertainment venue without 

approval of the City Council.” 

Financial Implications:  

The security deposit and appropriate large entertainment venue fee have been collected. 

Attachments: 

 Hastings Pride Committee Request Letter

 Special Event Application

10.A



















Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer‐Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Resolution 2024‐11 to Enact General Appropriations for FY 2024/2025, Approve 
                Operating Budgets, and Establish the Property Tax Millage Rates 

Meeting Date: May 13, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to adopt Resolution 2024‐11 to enact the General Appropriations Act for Fiscal Year 

2024/2025, and to approve the operating budgets for said year, and to establish the property 

tax millage rates to support the budget. 

Background Information:  

On April 22, 2024, City Council was presented with the City Manager’s Recommended Fiscal 

Year 2024/2025 Annual Budget. The budget document was reviewed at a workshop and City 

Council was provided the opportunity to address different budget items. The attachment to 

this resolution represents the budget detail provided to the City Council during that workshop. 

There were no changes made to the recommended budget. 

The general operating millage rate was reduced by Headlee to 15.7445 mills, and the millage to 

support operations at Riverside Cemetery was reduced to 0.88461 mills as noted in the 

proposed budget. 

A public hearing for the budget proposal and millage rates will be held on May 13, 2024, during 

a regular City Council meeting. 

Financial Implications:  

Approval of the resolution will provide resources for city services for the fiscal year beginning 

July 1, 2024. 

Attachments: 

 Resolution 2024‐11

 Attachment to Resolution 2024‐11

10.B



 

Resolution 2024-11 Page 1 of 2  May 13, 2024 

 City Of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

__________________________         ____  
  

RESOLUTION 2024-11 
 

TO ENACT THE GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025, 
AND TO APPROVE THE OPERATING BUDGETS FOR SAID YEAR, 

AND TO ESTABLISH THE PROPERTY TAX MILLAGE RATES TO SUPPORT THE 
BUDGET 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of the City Charter, on April 22, 2024, a 
recommended budget was submitted to this Council for the City of Hastings, Michigan for the 
fiscal year commencing July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025, and 
 
WHEREAS, this Council has considered the financial needs of the City of Hastings for its efficient 
operations during the coming fiscal year and has reviewed the recommended budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with State statute, on May 13, 2024, the Council did, after proper 
notice, conduct a public hearing on the proposed budget, and on the proposed millage rate to 
be levied to support the proposed budget, at which public hearing all objections and comments 
on the proposed budget and millage rate were considered; now 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Hastings adopts the 
attached document labeled “Budget Adoption FY 2024/2025” as the City’s budget for the fiscal 
year commencing July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025, specifically incorporating all of the 
following: 
 
 That the estimates of anticipated revenue in the various funds are as shown on 

the budget document; and 
 
 That the interfund transfers to and from the various funds as shown on the budget 

document are hereby approved by this Council; and 
 
 That the expenditures in the various funds as shown on the budget document are 

hereby appropriated by this Council; and 
 

That funds are appropriated from fund balance to balance the budgets in the 
various funds are as shown on the budget document; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that 15.7445 mills be levied on the taxable assessed valuation 
as equalized for general operating requirements of the City of Hastings; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that an additional 0.8846 mills be levied on the taxable assessed 
valuation as equalized for purposes of operating, maintaining, and improving a municipal 
cemetery; and 



 

Resolution 2024-11 Page 2 of 2  May 13, 2024 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager is hereby authorized to make budgetary 
transfers within the line items of appropriation centers established through this budget and that 
all transfers between appropriations listed in this resolution may be made only by further action 
of this Council, pursuant to the provisions of the Michigan Uniform Accounting and Budgeting 
Act; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the funds appropriated shall be drawn from the treasury of 
the City for the purposes approved pursuant to the authority granted by the Hastings City 
Charter. 
 
A motion to adopt the foregoing resolution being offered by Member _______, second by 
Member _______: 
 
YEAS:  _____________  
NAYS:  _____________ 
ABSENT: _____________ 
 
MOTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was adopted at a duly held and attended regular 
meeting the 13th day of May 2024, by the City Council of the City of Hastings, by a vote of ___ 
members voting in favor thereof, ___ members voting against, and ___ members absent. 
 
        
    
     ______________________________ 
                 Amy Hubbell 
      Deputy City Clerk 



  Budget Adop on FY 2024/2025 

 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
General Fund Amount

Revenue
Taxes $3,638,300
Special Assessments $32,500
Licenses and Permits $19,250
Federal Sources $236,216
State Sources $1,139,391
Intergovernmental Sources $923,228
Charges for Services $668,100
Fines and Forfeitures $8,500
Investment Income and Rentals $335,400
Other Revenue $451,300

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE $7,452,185

Expenditures
General Government:

City Council $82,326
Mayor $14,811
City Manager $192,810
Finance Department $396,945
Clerk $117,396
Information Technology $244,000
Board of Review $2,512
Treasurer $83,928
Assessor $171,282
Elections $56,368
City Hall and Grounds $158,950
Legal and Audit $70,000
Other General Government $588,415

$2,179,743
Public Safety:

Police Department $2,099,689
Code Compliance $50,962
Fire Department $524,545
Inspections $100,000

$2,775,196
Public Works:

Department of Public Services Administration $159,240
Parking Non-SAD $23,000
Parking SAD $267,500
Street Lighting $99,500
Community Services $300,355

$849,595
Community and Economic Development: 

Planning and Zoning $18,685
Joint Planning and Zoning $400
Community Development $143,143
Community Development Grant Projects $65,100
Cable Access $13,776

$241,104
Recreation and Cultural:

Parks and Recreation $1,344,325
Arts and Cultural Services $81,526

$1,425,851

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES $7,471,489

Other Financing Sources
Transfers  Out $549,696

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES $8,021,185

Addition to / (Use of) Fund Balance ($569,000)



  Budget Adop on FY 2024/2025 

 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS Amount

Major Street Special Revenue Fund
Total Major Streets Fund Revenue $1,235,556

Total Major Streets Fund Transfers In $225,000

Total Major Streets Fund Expenditures $1,593,169
.

Total Major Streets Fund Transfers Out $150,000

Addition to / (Use of) Fund Balance ($282,613)

Local Streets Special Revenue Fund
Total Local Streets Fund Revenue $373,772

Total Local Streets Fund Transfers In $300,000

Total Local Streets Fund Expenditures $721,691

Addition to / (Use of) Fund Balance ($47,919)

Riverside Cemetery Special Revenue Fund
Total Riverside Cemetery Revenue $273,779

Total Riverside Cemetery Expenditures $312,362

Addition to / (Use of) Fund Balance ($38,583)

Drug Enforcement Special Revenue Fund
Total Drug Enforcement Revenue $2,500

Total Drug Enforcement Expenditures $5,600

Addition to / (Use of) Fund Balance ($3,100)

Police Training Special Revenue Fund
Total Police Training Revenue $1,900

Total Police Training Transfers In $1,500

Total Police Training Expenditures $4,900

Addition to / (Use of) Fund Balance ($1,500)

Library Special Revenue Fund
Total Library Revenue $500,320

Total Library Transfers In $173,196

Total Library Expenditures $656,799

Addition to / (Use of) Fund Balance $16,717

COMPONENT UNITS 

Brownfields Redevelopment Authority Fund
Total Brownfields Redevelopment Authority Revenue $63,200

Total Brownfields Redevelopment Authority Expenditures $45,000

Addition to / (Use of) Fund Balance $18,200



  Budget Adop on FY 2024/2025 

 

COMPONENT UNITS (continued) Amount

Downtown Development Authority Fund
Total Downtown Development Authority Revenue $807,950

Total Downtown Development Authority Expenditures $883,391

Addition to / (Use of) Fund Balance ($75,441)

Local Development Finance Authority Fund
Total Local Development Finance Authority Revenue $89,200

Total Local Development Finance Authority Expenditures $11,225

Addition to / (Use of) Fund Balance $77,975

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Water and Sewer Fund
Total Water and Sewer Revenue $4,900,690

Total Water and Sewer Expenditures including Capital Outlay $5,067,941

Addition to / (Use of) Fund Balance ($167,251)

Equipment Internal Service Fund
Total Equipment Internal Service Fund Revenue $908,000

Total Equipment Internal Service Expenditures including Capital Outlay $1,475,963

Addition to / (Use of) Fund Balance ($567,963)



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Mayor Tossava and City Council 

From: Dan King 

Subject: Resolution 2024‐12 to Dissolve the LDFA 

Meeting Date: May 13, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Adopt Resolution 2024‐12 to dissolve the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) as 

recommended by the LDFA Board per LDFA Resolution 01‐2024 adopted April 25, 2024. 

Background Information:  

On February 8, 1993 City Council adopted a Resolution which intended the establishment of the 

Hastings Local Development Finance Authority and designating the boundaries of the LDFA 

district. Most recently the LDFA Development and Tax Increment Financing Plans were 

amended and restated on June 12, 2017. The LDFA board met on April 25, 2024 and 

determined that its purpose has been successfully fulfilled and there is no further reason for 

the board to continue. Having met the objectives created in both the original and restated 

plans, the LDFA adopted Resolution 01‐2024 recommending the City Council take action to 

dissolve the LDFA. 

Financial Implications:  

LDFA property and assets will revert to the City. 

Attachments: 

 LDFA Resolution 01‐2024

 City Council Resolution 2024‐12

10.C







Resolution 2024-12                                 Page 1 of 2   May 13, 2024 
 

City Of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

_______ ___________________        ____ 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
RESOLUTION 2024-12 

 
RESOLUTION TO DISSOLVE AND TERMINATE THE CITY OF HASTINGS 

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY, TAX INCREMENT 
FINANCING & DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND DISTRICT 

 
 Councilmember ________________, supported by Councilmember ________________, moved 

the adoption of the following resolution: 

 WHEREAS, the City of Hastings Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) was created 
on February 8, 1993 by Resolution of the City Council under the authority of Act 281 of the 
Michigan Public Acts of 1986, repealed and recodified in Part 4 of Act 57 of 2018, as amended, and 
a tax increment financing and development plan (Development Plan) was adopted, in order to 
provide the necessary legal, monetary and organizational tools to eliminate the conditions of 
unemployment, underemployment and joblessness and to promote economic growth through publicly 
initiated projects undertaken cooperatively with privately initiated projects in the geographically 
determined LDFA District area; and 

WHEREAS, the Development Plan was amended and restated August 13, 2001 and June 12, 
2017; and 

WHEREAS, the LDFA Board has faithfully executed its duty to achieve the goals set forth in 
the development including, but not limited to, preparing and making available vacant industrial land 
for development, acquiring and developing public street right-of-way for use by industry, acquisition 
of property for future development, creation of deed restrictions within the industrial park to secure 
the future vision for that development area; and 

WHEREAS, all property within the industrial park for development has been sold or is under a 
purchase agreement for private industrial purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the LDFA Board has thoughtfully considered its goals and objectives found in the 
approved Development Plan and determined that all goals have either been fulfilled or are no longer 
reasonable due to existing development patterns; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to MCL 125.4420, an LDFA authority that completes the purposes for 
which it was organized shall be dissolved by resolution of the governing body and any property and 
assets of the authority remaining after the satisfaction of the obligations of the authority shall belong to 
the municipality or to an agency or instrumentality designated by resolution of the municipality. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 



Resolution 2024-12                                 Page 2 of 2   May 13, 2024 
 

1. That the City Council hereby determines that the LDFA’s purpose has been successfully fulfilled, 

the LDFA has no outstanding debts or obligations, and there is no further reason for the LDFA Board to 

continue to exist or for the Development Plan or District to continue in effect. 

2. That the City Council hereby dissolves the LDFA Board, and dissolves and terminates the LDFA 

Development Plan and the District in which it operates. 

3. That any property or assets of the LDFA shall be divested in accordance with Part 4 of Act 57 of 

2018, as amended. 

4. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be, and the same are hereby, 

repealed. 

 

YEAS:            
NAYS:           
ABSENT:          
ABSTAIN:           
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ___________. 
 
 
Dated: May 13, 2024           
       Amy Hubbell, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
 I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Hastings, Barry County, 
Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the 
City Council at a regular meeting held on May 13, 2024, the original of which is on file in my office, 
and public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in compliance with Act 267 of the Public 
Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended. 
 
Dated: May 13, 2024 
       __________________________________  
       Amy Hubbell, Deputy Clerk 

 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To:  City Council  

From:  Travis J. Tate, P.E., Director of Public Services 

Subject:  Resolution for MDOT Agreement M‐43 Crosswalk/Pedestrian Island

Meeting Date:  May 13, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to adopt Resolution 2024‐13 authorizing the Mayor and Deputy Clerk to sign the MDOT 

agreement for the pedestrian island on M‐43. 

Background Information:  

MDOT requires a resolution to sign the agreement with them for the City to install and maintain 

the proposed pedestrian island/crosswalk on M‐43. 

Financial Implications:  

None. 

Attachments: 

 Resolution 2024‐13

 MDOT Agreement

10.D



Resolution 2024-13 Page 1 of 1 May 13, 2024  

City Of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

__________________________        ___________ _  
    

RESOLUTION 2024-13 
 

AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH MDOT FOR OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 
OF THE PEDESTRIAN REFUGE ISLAND ON M-43 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Hastings seeks to improve safety and pedestrian access to its walking paths, parks, 
and other public spaces; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City plans to install a median pedestrian refuge island at Thorn Street near Tyden Park to 
protect the safety of users of the Riverwalk Trail as a pilot program in cooperation with the Michigan 
Department of Transportation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Transportation has requested the City Council approve the 
Agreement and for an authorized City of Hastings representative sign a maintenance agreement for the 
proposed Median Pedestrian Refuge Island located on Highway M-43 at Thorn Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order for the said Median Pedestrian Refuge Island pilot program to be implemented, that 
the City of Hastings will follow all rules and regulations described in said agreement; now 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Hastings authorizes the Mayor and Deputy Clerk to sign 
Michigan Department of Transportation Agreement, Contract 24-5222: 
 

 
A motion to adopt the foregoing resolution being offered by Member ______, with support by Member 
__________: 
 
YEAS:   
NAYS:   
ABSENT:  
 
MOTION DECLARED ________. 
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was adopted at a duly held and attended regular meeting the 
13th day of May 2024, by the City Council of the City of Hastings, by a vote of _____ members voting in 
favor thereof and _____ members voting against. 
 
           
        ______________________________ 
               Amy Hubbell, Deputy Clerk 
 
 
 
  



04/25/24 1

PERMIT      DA 
SPECIAL TRUNKLINE  Control Section  08012  
MAINTENANCE  Permit Reference Number  101978 

Contract 24-5222 

THIS Contract is made by and between the MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION, hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT"; and the CITY OF 
HASTINGS, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "AGENCY"; for 
the purpose of fixing the rights and obligations of the parties in agreeing to the maintenance and 
operation median pedestrian refuge island by the AGENCY. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the AGENCY is proposing the installation of median pedestrian refuge 
island within the trunkline roadway right-of-way (ROW); and 

WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT has determined it to be acceptable to have the 
AGENCY construct the proposed work which is hereinafter referred to as the "PROJECT" and 
are further described and located as follows: 

Median pedestrian refuge island construction work on Highway M-43 at Thorn 
Street; together with necessary related work, located within the corporate limits of 
the AGENCY; and 

WHEREAS, the AGENCY will be responsible for the entire cost of the PROJECT; and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto have reached an understanding with each other regarding 
the performance of the PROJECT work and the maintenance and operation of the facility to be 
constructed as the PROJECT and desire to set forth this understanding in the form of a written 
Contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual undertakings of 
the parties and in conformity with applicable law, it is agreed: 

1. The AGENCY will construct the PROJECT at no cost to the DEPARTMENT. 

2. The AGENCY shall cause to be performed all the PROJECT work as defined in 
the permit obtained from the DEPARTMENT.  It is understood that portions or all of the 
PROJECT work will be placed under contract by the AGENCY.  The performance of the 
PROJECT work will be subject to the conditions established in PERMIT REFERENCE 
NUMBER 101978. 



04/25/24 2

3. Upon completion of construction, the AGENCY will, at its sole cost and expense, 
inspect, maintain and operate the facility constructed as the PROJECT in accordance with all 
applicable Federal and State laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, Title II of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 42 USC 12131 et seq., and its associated regulations 
and standards, and DEPARTMENT Road and Bridge Standard Plans and the Standard 
Specifications for Construction.  All future maintenance activities will require a ROW 
construction permit from the DEPARTMENT.  The AGENCY shall conform with all 
DEPARTMENT permit requirements for any work to be performed within the state trunkline 
ROW.  As built plans will be provided to the Grand Rapids Transportation Service Center. 

A. The AGENCY agrees that the PROJECT location will be maintained so as 
to assure that any Trunkline facilities, structures and the area within the 
Trunkline ROW boundaries will be kept in good condition, both as to 
safety and appearance.  All unauthorized drawings, graffiti and vandalism 
shall be removed by the AGENCY at no cost the DEPARTMENT. The 
maintenance of the facilities by the AGENCY will be accomplished in a 
manner so as not to cause interference with the reconstruction, 
maintenance or operation of the Trunkline facility and ROW.  

B. The DEPARTMENT reserves the right to enter the PROJECT location for 
the purpose of inspection, maintenance or reconstruction of the Trunkline 
facility when necessary.  Additionally, the DEPARTMENT reserves the 
right to access the PROJECT location as deemed necessary for inspection 
relating to the DEPARTMENT'S interests.  Such inspections are made for 
the DEPARTMENT'S own purposes and shall not relieve AGENCY of its 
duties and obligations under the terms of this Contract.  Any deficiencies 
discovered will be corrected or repaired by the AGENCY at no cost to the 
DEPARTMENT. 

C. Prior to occupancy and/or use of the PROJECT location, the 
DEPARTMENT will inspect and approve the construction of the 
PROJECT. 

4. The parties hereto agree to comply with all applicable requirements of the Natural 
Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 P.A., 451, MCL 324.01 et. Seq. for all 
PROJECT work performed under this Contract and future maintenance work, and the AGENCY 
shall require its contractors and subcontractors to comply with the same. 

5.  The AGENCY will not store, allow the storage of or discharge of any radioactive, 
toxic, flammable, poisonous, explosive or other dangerous, hazardous materials, or waste on the 
said premises.  In addition, the AGENCY will not permit objectionable smoke, fumes, vapors, or 
odors to rise above the grade line of the Trunkline.  No signs, displays or devices may be erected 
on the ROW for the PROJECT unless specified herein or approved by the DEPARTMENT. 



04/25/24 3

6. It is expressly understood and agreed that in case of non-performance of any of 
the covenants herein made by the AGENCY and after said AGENCY has been furnished written 
notice of same by the DEPARTMENT and has been granted a reasonable period of time as 
determined by the DEPARTMENT for performance or correction thereof, this Contract shall be 
terminated and said AGENCY shall lose and be barred from all rights, remedies, and actions 
both at law and in equity upon or under this Contract. 

7. It is expressly understood that use of the trunkline ROW is subject to the 
paramount right of the DEPARTMENT and that upon a determination by the DEPARTMENT 
that such ROW is required for the construction, operation, and/or maintenance of any present or 
proposed trunkline or trunkline use, this Contract may be terminated at the discretion of the 
DEPARTMENT and the facility constructed as the PROJECT may be removed without 
reimbursement to the AGENCY. 

8. Upon termination of this Contract, the AGENCY will peacefully yield up said 
PROJECT in as good order and condition as when delivered to the AGENCY at no cost to the 
DEPARTMENT.  In the event this Contract is terminated and if the DEPARTMENT deems it 
necessary to request the removal of any facility occupying the premises, such removal shall be 
accomplished by the AGENCY in a manner as prescribed by the DEPARTMENT, at no cost to 
the DEPARTMENT or the Federal Highway Administration. 

9. Any removal or modification of the facilities of the AGENCY, when necessary 
for Trunkline purposes, shall be performed by the AGENCY at no cost to the DEPARTMENT.  
Upon failure to so perform, the DEPARTMENT at its discretion may perform such work at the 
cost of the AGENCY or terminate this Contract. 

10. The AGENCY recognizes and acknowledges that private and/or public utility 
companies may require the modification of the AGENCY'S facilities and it shall cooperate with 
the utility when requested by the DEPARTMENT at no cost to the DEPARTMENT, or 
interference with the Trunkline ROW and Trunkline facility. 

11. It is understood that if the AGENCY discontinues, abandons or changes the usage 
of the PROJECT ROW, then this Contract shall be terminated and the DEPARTMENT shall 
have the right to immediately remove the facility constructed as the PROJECT without 
reimbursement to the AGENCY. 

12. Each party to this Contract will remain responsive for any and all claims arising 
out of its own acts and/or omissions during the performance of the Contract, as provided by this 
Contract or by law.  In addition, this is not intended to increase or decrease either party’s liability 
for or immunity from tort claims.  This Contract is also not intended to nor will it be interpreted 
as giving either party a right of indemnification, either by contract or by law, for claims arising 
out of the performance of this Contract. 



04/25/24 4

13. This Contract shall become binding on the parties hereto and of full force and 
effect upon the signing thereof by the duly authorized officials for the AGENCY and for the 
DEPARTMENT and upon the adoption of a resolution approving said Contract and authorizing 
the signatures thereto of the respective officials of the AGENCY, a certified copy of which 
resolution shall be attached to this Contract.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be executed as 
written below. 

CITY OF HASTINGS MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT  
OF TRANSPORTATION 

By_________________________          By__________________________ 
  Title:                                   Department Director  MDOT 

By_________________________ 
  Title 

DoyleL
Reviewed



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer‐Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Direct TV Franchise Agreement Extension 

Meeting Date: May 13, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve the video franchise agreement with DirectTV, LLC for a ten‐year period with 

a video service provider fee of ___%.  

Background Information:  

The video service franchise agreement process has been standardized by the State. The 

Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement must be used. The only item that can change 

is the fee. The fee has been set at 4% in the past but can go as high as 5%. Costs are typically 

passed on to the customer.  

Financial Implications:  

Franchise fee revenue only accounts for about $15,000 of budgeted revenue.  

Attachments: 

 Direct TV correspondence regarding the franchise agreement

 Proposed Franchise Agreement

10.E





















Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To:  Hastings City Council  

From:  Travis J. Tate, P.E., Director of Public Services 

Subject:  Fish Hatchery Park New Restroom Building Proposals 

Meeting Date:  May 13, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve the proposal from Bultsma Construction Company to build the Fish 

Hatchery Park restroom building for a total price of $447,058.20. 

Background Information:  

There were three bids received and opened for this project on May 7th and they were 

as follows:  Bultsma Construction ($447,058.20), First Peninsula Contractors ($587,863.00), and 

TJM Services LLC ($786,530.80).  

Financial Implications:  

Council budgeted $450,000 for this project next fiscal year. Council has already 

approved design and construction administration by MCSA group and paid about half of their 

fees to date. The total project cost will be about 5% more than estimated but there are 

sufficient funds to cover this.  

Attachments: 

 Bid Tab

 Bid Set

10.F



Process Final Sign Off By:     ON:       
               CLERK’S REPRESENTATIVE          DATE 

City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

               
 

Sealed Bid Opening Results 
 

Procurement Number:       [Assigned by Clerk’s Office] 
 
B id Name:               
 
Opening Date & Time:________________________________________________ 
 

 
Vender Bids: 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Present at 
Opening:________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

 

 

Bid Granted to: _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

PO #:     ISSUED TO:         ON:      
            APPROVED VENDOR    DATE 



PROJECT
LOCATION

SHEET INDEX

NOT TO SCALELOCATION MAP

CONSTRUCTION PLANS
FISH HATCHERY PARK RESTROOM BUILDING
CITY OF HASTINGS, MICHIGAN
04.22.2024

CONSULTING TEAM MEMBERS:

F
IS

H
 H

A
T

C
H

E
R

Y
 P

A
R

K
 R

E
S

T
R

O
O

M
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 -

 C
IT

Y
 O

F
 H

A
S

T
IN

G
S

 -
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
. 2

21
8

M
C

S
A

 G
R

O
U

P
, I

N
C

.

616-451-3346    FAX: 616-451-1935    EMAIL: tas@mcsagroup.com

MCSA GROUP, INC.
Landscape Architecture    Park & Recreation Planning    Architecture

529 Greenwood Avenue S.E.    East Grand Rapids, MI 49506
Downtown Planning    Interior Design    Sports Facility Planning

Geotechnical
Soils & Structures
6480 Grand Haven Rd.
Muskegon, MI 49441
(800) 933-3959

Topographic Survey and
Civil Engineer
LRE
2121 3 Mile Rd. NW
Walker, MI 49544
(616) 301-7888

Structural, Mechanical, Electrical & Plumbing Engineering
Classic Engineering, LLC.
100 Cesar E. Chavez Ave. SW Suite 400
Grand Rapids, MI 49503
(616) 742-2810

L1 Site and Layout Plan
L2 Existing Conditions & Removals Plan
L3 Landscape Plan
L4 Construction Details
C1 Site Survey
C2

A2 Exterior Elevations, Sections

S0 Structural Notes

Utility, Grading, and SESC Plan

P1 Plumbing Floor Plan
M1 Mechanical Floor Plan

S1 Structural Plans and Details

A1 Floor / Roof Plans, Schedules

A3 Interior Elevations, Sections

E1 Electrical Floor Plan
E2 Electrical Details, Schedules and One-Lines



616-451-3346    FAX: 616-451-1935    EMAIL: tas@mcsagroup.com

MCSA GROUP, INC.
Landscape Architecture    Park & Recreation Planning    Architecture

529 Greenwood Avenue S.E.    East Grand Rapids, MI 49506
Downtown Planning    Interior Design    Sports Facility Planning

SCALE:

DATE

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.FISH HATCHERY PARK RESTROOM BUILDING
        CITY OF HASTINGS, MICHIGAN

4.22.2024 2218

Site and Layout Plan1"= 10' L1



616-451-3346    FAX: 616-451-1935    EMAIL: tas@mcsagroup.com

MCSA GROUP, INC.
Landscape Architecture    Park & Recreation Planning    Architecture

529 Greenwood Avenue S.E.    East Grand Rapids, MI 49506
Downtown Planning    Interior Design    Sports Facility Planning

SCALE:

DATE

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.FISH HATCHERY PARK RESTROOM BUILDING
        CITY OF HASTINGS, MICHIGAN

4.22.2024 2218Existing Conditions
and Removals Plan1"= 10' L2



616-451-3346    FAX: 616-451-1935    EMAIL: tas@mcsagroup.com

MCSA GROUP, INC.
Landscape Architecture    Park & Recreation Planning    Architecture

529 Greenwood Avenue S.E.    East Grand Rapids, MI 49506
Downtown Planning    Interior Design    Sports Facility Planning

SCALE:

DATE

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.FISH HATCHERY PARK RESTROOM BUILDING
        CITY OF HASTINGS, MICHIGAN

4.22.2024 2218

Landscape Plan1"= 10' L3



Scale:

Concrete Paving & Joints
1-1/2"=1'-0"

Scale:

New Concrete at Existing Concrete
1-1/2"=1'-0"

616-451-3346    FAX: 616-451-1935    EMAIL: tas@mcsagroup.com

MCSA GROUP, INC.
Landscape Architecture    Park & Recreation Planning    Architecture

529 Greenwood Avenue S.E.    East Grand Rapids, MI 49506
Downtown Planning    Interior Design    Sports Facility Planning

SCALE:

DATE

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.FISH HATCHERY PARK RESTROOM BUILDING
        CITY OF HASTINGS, MICHIGAN

4.22.2024 2218

Construction DetailsAs Shown L4



POND

ZONING=R-S

VICINITY MAP

CITY OF HASTINGS, BARRY COUNTY,  MICHIGAN

BASIS OF BEARINGS

BENCHMARK INFORMATION

FISH HATCHERY PARK

NOTES

SITE LOCATION

T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

C1

FLOOD PLAIN INFORMATION

LEGEND

0

Horizontal Scale in Feet

20 40

R

CALL 3 WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG

ZONING INFORMATION

N
ashville R

d

CITY OF HASTINGS

M 43

W State Rd
E Woodlawn Ave

INDEX OF SHEETS
C1 - TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY
C2 - UTILITY, GRADING & SESC PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

PR
O

JE
C

T 
N

U
M

BE
R

: 
C

LI
EN

T:

PR
O

JE
C

T:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S:

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

D
AT

E
21

21
 3

 M
ile

 R
d.

 N
W

W
al

ke
r, 

M
I 4

95
44

Ph
: 6

16
-3

01
-7

88
8

w
w

w
.L

R
EM

I.c
om

D
AT

E
N

O
.

M
.C

.S
.A

. G
R

O
U

P

FI
SH

 H
AT

C
H

ER
Y 

PA
R

K
H

AS
TI

N
G

S,
 M

I

52
9 

G
R

EE
N

W
O

O
D

 A
VE

N
U

E 
S.

E.
 E

AS
T 

G
R

AN
D

 R
AP

ID
S,

 M
IC

H
IG

AN
 4

95
06

C
LI

EN
T 

R
EV

IE
W

3/
8/

20
24

1.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
R

SB

D
R

AF
TE

D
 B

Y:
JW

S 

Q
AQ

C
:M

PB

SU
R

VE
YE

D
 B

Y:
  A

D
K/

LG
S

04
/2

02
4

04
/2

02
4

02
/2

02
4

04
/2

02
4

C
LI

EN
T 

R
EV

IE
W

4/
12

/2
02

4
2.



E8

E8

S51

E8

S51

S51

S51

LEGEND

NOTES

EROSION & SEDIMENTATION CONTROL NOTES

PERMANENT SEEDING NOTE:E8

U
T

IL
IT

Y
, G

R
A

D
IN

G
 &

S
E

S
C

  P
LA

N

C2
R

CALL 3 WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG

BENCHMARK INFORMATION

SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT
COPPER SERVICE LEAD

CONNECTION/SAMPLE POINT

0

Horizontal Scale in Feet

10 20

 S-E-S-C KEYING SYSTEM 
MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET

PERMANENT SEEDINGE8

EROSION CONTROLS

Stabilization method utilized on sites where earth
change has been completed (final grading attained).

SHEET NUMBER

PR
O

JE
C

T 
N

U
M

BE
R

: 
C

LI
EN

T:

PR
O

JE
C

T:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S:

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

D
AT

E
21

21
 3

 M
ile

 R
d.

 N
W

W
al

ke
r, 

M
I 4

95
44

Ph
: 6

16
-3

01
-7

88
8

w
w

w
.L

R
EM

I.c
om

D
AT

E
N

O
.

M
.C

.S
.A

. G
R

O
U

P

FI
SH

 H
AT

C
H

ER
Y 

PA
R

K
H

AS
TI

N
G

S,
 M

I

52
9 

G
R

EE
N

W
O

O
D

 A
VE

N
U

E 
S.

E.
 E

AS
T 

G
R

AN
D

 R
AP

ID
S,

 M
IC

H
IG

AN
 4

95
06

C
LI

EN
T 

R
EV

IE
W

3/
8/

20
24

1.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
R

SB

D
R

AF
TE

D
 B

Y:
JW

S 

Q
AQ

C
:M

PB

SU
R

VE
YE

D
 B

Y:
  A

D
K/

LG
S

04
/2

02
4

04
/2

02
4

02
/2

02
4

04
/2

02
4

C
LI

EN
T 

R
EV

IE
W

4/
12

/2
02

4
2.

SILT FENCES51
Use adjacent to critical areas, to prevent sediment laden
sheet flow from entering these areas.

ROLL JOINTS

S51 SILT FENCE DETAILTYPICAL TRENCH DETAIL









616-451-3346    FAX: 616-451-1935    EMAIL: tas@mcsagroup.com

MCSA GROUP, INC.
Landscape Architecture    Park & Recreation Planning    Architecture

529 Greenwood Avenue S.E.    East Grand Rapids, MI 49506
Downtown Planning    Interior Design    Sports Facility Planning

SCALE:

DATE

BID SET

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.FISH HATCHERY PARK RESTROOM BUILDING
CITY OF HASTINGS, MICHIGAN

4.22.2024 2218

a

θ

a

a
a

a a

4

4

1

1

2

3

3

3

3

5
3

5

5

3

5

STRUCTURAL NOTESNONE S0



t

t/3

SCALE: S1 NOT TO SCALE

SCALE: S1 NOT TO SCALE

xxxxxxxx

xxxxxxx

SCALE: S1S1 3/4" = 1'-0"

x xx x xx x x x x x x

SCALE: S1S1 3/4" = 1'-0"

SCALE: S1S1 3/4" = 1'-0"

x x x

SCALE: S1S1 3/4" = 1'-0"

PLATE
LINE

SCALE: S1S1 3/4" = 1'-0"

SCALE: S1 NOT TO SCALE

616-451-3346    FAX: 616-451-1935    EMAIL: tas@mcsagroup.com

MCSA GROUP, INC.
Landscape Architecture    Park & Recreation Planning    Architecture

529 Greenwood Avenue S.E.    East Grand Rapids, MI 49506
Downtown Planning    Interior Design    Sports Facility Planning

SCALE:

DATE

BID SET

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.FISH HATCHERY PARK RESTROOM BUILDING
CITY OF HASTINGS, MICHIGAN

4.22.2024 2218

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

STRUCTURAL PLANS & DETAILS1/4"=1'-0" S1

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"



SCALE:

DATE

BID SET

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.FISH HATCHERY PARK RESTROOM BUILDING
CITY OF HASTINGS, MICHIGAN

4.22.2024 2218

1/4"=1' P1

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"





SCALE:

DATE

BID SET

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.FISH HATCHERY PARK RESTROOM BUILDING
CITY OF HASTINGS, MICHIGAN

4.22.2024 2218

1/4"=1' M1

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"



J4

J4

A-1
A-1

A A

AA

B

B B

B

A

OS A-1

OS

1

IRA-1

1

IRA-1

1

IR

1

IR

A-1

A-1

A-1

2

2

3

3

3

A

A

A

A

A

J 3

J
DRYER

J
DRYER

J
DRYER

J
DRYER

AC AC

ACAC

EWC
GFI
AREAKER

FEWH
A-7/9

PANEL A

M

NEW
UTILITY
METER

F
A-8

EF-1
F

A-8

EF-2

J

1

2

1

11

2

2
2

3

J

3

TC

A-3

A-5
A-2 A-2A-4

A-10

A-11

A-2 A-3 A-6
A-2J3

A-11

616-451-3346    FAX: 616-451-1935    EMAIL: tas@mcsagroup.com

MCSA GROUP, INC.
Landscape Architecture    Park & Recreation Planning    Architecture

529 Greenwood Avenue S.E.    East Grand Rapids, MI 49506
Downtown Planning    Interior Design    Sports Facility Planning

SCALE:

DATE

BID SET

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.FISH HATCHERY PARK RESTROOM BUILDING
CITY OF HASTINGS, MICHIGAN

4.22.2024 2218

Restroom Floor Plan1/4"=1' E1

LIGHTING KEY  NOTES:

PROVIDE OCCUPANCY  SENSOR WALL SWITCH IN ALL TOILET ROOMS WITH VANDAL
RESISTANT LENS -  ACUITY: WSXA OR EQUAL.

PROVIDE CEILING OCCUPANCY SENSOR WITH PROPER COVERAGE IN CORRIDOR - ACUITY
NCM OR EQUAL.  AUTO ON AND PARTIAL AUTO OFF AFTER 20 MINUTES.  PROVIDE WIRE
GUARD OVER SENSOR - ACUITY: WG1 OR EQUAL.

CONTROL EXTERIOR LIGHTS WITH PHOTOCELL AND 7-DAY PROGRAMMABLE TIME CLOCK.

1

2

POWER KEYNOTES:GENERAL POWER NOTES:

1. MOUNT PANELS, TRANSFORMERS, DISCONNECT SWITCHES, AND COMBINATION MOTOR
STARTERS WITH ADEQUATE CLEARANCES IN ACCORDANCE WITH NEC 110.

ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE AND INSTALL HAND DRYERS, EXCEL - XLERATOR
MODEL XL-W SURFACE MOUNT, NO-TOUCH CONTROL, WHITE COVER, 115V 20A 1450 W.

EXHAUST FAN AND LIGHT FIXTURE(S)  IN ROOM SHALL BE CONTROLLED TOGETHER.  PROVIDE
SENSOR RATED FOR MOTOR AND LIGHTING LOAD.   REFER TO LIGHTING PLAN FOR CIRCUIT
INFORMATION.

ROUGH-IN FOR FUTURE SECURITY CAMERA.  PROVIDE WEATHER-TIGHT BLANK COVER AND
MOUNT AT 72" AFF TO BOTTOM OF BOX.

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

1

2

3 3

P
:\2

02
4\

20
24

12
0 

H
as

tin
gs

 F
is

h 
H

at
ch

er
y 

R
es

tr
oo

m
\W

or
ki

ng
 D

ra
w

in
gs

\2
02

41
20

 E
1.

dw
g,

 4
/1

9/
20

24
 1

:4
5:

24
 P

M
, m

de
lo

ra



Legend & Details E2

ELECTRICAL IDENTIFICATION
N.T.S.

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---

---------
---------

---------
---------

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---

---------
---------

---------
---------

FRONT

REAR SIDE
OF PLATE

FRONT

REAR SIDE OF
PLATE

BPA-15LP2-5

LABEL CKT. NO. OF EACH DEVICE ON REAR
SIDE OF COVER PLATE. USE PERMANENT
MARKER PEN,  BRADY MARKING SYSTEM OR
OTHER METHOD APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER

JUNCTION BOXES (EXPOSED
OR CONCEALED ABOVE
ACCESSIBLE CEILING)

LABEL COVERS WITH CKT.'S CONTAINED
WITHIN. USE PERMANENT MARKER PEN
OR OTHER APPROVED METHOD.

FOR J.B.'S CONTAINING  OTHER
THAN POWER OR LIGHTING CKT.'S
LABEL COVERS INDICATING
SYSTEM TYPE AND ZONES.

CKT.S
LP4-13,15,17

DUPLEX RECEPTACLE
PLATE

STANDARD TOGGLE
SWITCH PLATE

LABEL EXAMPLES:
"FIRE ALARM-ZONES 2&3"
"P.A. ZONES 4,5,&6" "DATA
CIRCUITS A&B" "EXIT
SIGNS-EMI&2" "EMERG.
CKTS. BPEM-3,4"

E2

A

SYMBOL NOTES:
1. "AC" DENOTES ABOVE COUNTER.  COORDINATE HEIGHT WITH ARCHITECT.
2. "H" DENOTES HORIZONTAL MOUNTING OF DEVICE.
3. "B" DENOTES MOUNTED IN BASE.
4. "F" DENOTES MOUNTED IN FACE OF CABINETS.

T
THERMOSTAT.  E.C TO ROUGH-IN SINGLE GANG BOX AND
1/2"C. TO ACCESSIBLE CEILING SPACE.

TRANSFORMER

SURFACE OR FLUSH MTD. BRANCH CIRCUIT  PANELBOARD

SINGLE PHASE ELECTRIC MOTOR

DIMMER SWITCH

46"

T

P

F

J

ELECTRICAL SYMBOL LEGEND

S

WR

D

S

SYMBOL   DESCRIPTION

3

MTG. HT. TO CL

SPECIAL OUTLET-CHARACTERISTICS AS NOTED ON  PLANS

OS OCCUPANCY SENSOR

PUSH BUTTONPB

IRS IR SWITCH

SPECIAL SINGLE RECEPTACLE

PC PHOTO CELL

46"

46"

18"

18"

AS NOTED

46"

46"

AT EQUIP.

AS NOTED

---

---

46"

46"

72" TO TOP

SINGLE POLE OR 3-WAY SWITCH-
SPECIFICATION GRADE

WATER RESISTANT GROUND FAULT CIRCUIT INTERRUPTER
WITH  WEATHERPROOF WHILE IN USE COVER

JUNCTION BOX -4" SQ. BOX W/ 2 GANG RAISED COVER.
1"C. UP WALL TO CLG. SPACE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

FUSED DISCONNECT SWITCH-
FDS-HEAVY DUTY

NON-FUSED DISCONNECT SWITCH-
NFDS-HEAVY DUTY

SW. AND PLUGFUSE HOLDER- BUSSMANN
"SSU" & FUSESTAT FUSE

S

PARTIALLY SHADED LUMINAIRE OR WITH "E" SUFFIX ARE
EMERGENCY

BATTERY EMERGENCY LUMINAIRE

REMOTE EMERGENCY HEAD

RECESSED LUMINAIRE 2'x4' OR 2'x2'

RECESSED DOWNLIGHT LUMINAIRE

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

SURFACE LUMINAIRE

WALL MOUNTED LUMINAIRE

PENDANT LUMINAIRE

SITE LIGHTING LUMINAIRE

STRIP LUMINAIRE

SURFACE LUMINAIRE 2'x4' OR 2'x2'

EXIT SIGN - WALL MOUNTED OR CEILING MOUNTED
ARROWS  INDICATE PATH OF EGRESS

EE

H
HUMIDISTAT.  E.C TO ROUGH-IN SINGLE GANG BOX AND
1/2"C. TO ACCESSIBLE CEILING SPACE.

46"

---

---

D

S

SECURITY INTERCOM

SECURITY DOOR CONTACT

CEILING SPEAKER

SECURITY DOOR REQUEST TO EXIT

R CARD READER

---

46"

AT DOOR HEAD

46"

AT DOOR HEAD

TYPICALLY CLG
MOUNTED

I

C

X

SECURITY CAMERA - "W" DENOTES WALL MOUNTED
CHEVRON INDICATES AIM LINE

TC TIMECLOCK ---

616-451-3346    FAX: 616-451-1935    EMAIL: tas@mcsagroup.com

MCSA GROUP, INC.
Landscape Architecture    Park & Recreation Planning    Architecture

529 Greenwood Avenue S.E.    East Grand Rapids, MI 49506
Downtown Planning    Interior Design    Sports Facility Planning

SCALE:

DATE

BID SET

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.FISH HATCHERY PARK RESTROOM BUILDING
CITY OF HASTINGS, MICHIGAN

4.22.2024 2218

CONCRETE-ENCASED
ELECTRODEGROUND

ROD

NO. 6
COPPER
MINIMUM

BUILDING
STEEL

NEUTRAL
BUSS

BONDING JUMPER PROVIDED
BY E.C. IF NOT PROVIDED
WITH EQUIPMENT

EQUIPMENT GROUNDING
BUS

UNDERGROUND WATER PIPE.
PROVIDE FULL SIZE JUMPER
AROUND WATER METER AS
REQUIRED.

#4 BARE
COPPER
MINIMUM

GROUND RING.
MINIMUM OF 20' OF
#2 BARE COPPER.

NOT LARGER THAN
CONDUCTOR USED FOR
GROUND RING

5/8"x8'
MINIMUM

1. REFER TO NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE FOR ALL REQUIREMENTS FOR A
PROPERLY GROUNDED SYSTEM.

2. ALL GROUND CONDUCTORS TO BE SIZED ACCORDING TO ART. 250 OF THE
NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE.

GROUNDING ELECTRODE SYSTEM
N.T.S.

SERVICE DISCONNECT OR
SERVICE EQUIPMENT

B

E2

UTILITY

EX. UTILITY
TRANSFORMER
120/240V 1Ø

3-4/0, #4G, 2"C

A
PANEL

N.T.S.

ONE LINE GENERAL NOTES:

REFER TO WIRE SIZING CHART, COPPER OR
ALUMINUM MAY BE UTILIZED AT CONTRACTORS
DISCRETION UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.
COORDINATE ROUTING WITH TRADES ON SITE.

PROVIDE HAZARD LABELS PER CODE MEETING
ANSI Z535.4

ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL
DISCONNECTS (HEAVY DUTY) AND FUSES UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED. COORDINATE WITH
MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT FOR EXACT FUSE SIZES.

MEASURE GROUND GRID RESISTANCE WITH EARTH
GROUND TEST METER AND INSTALL ADDITIONAL
GROUND RODS AND CONDUCTORS AS REQUIRED
UNTIL RESISTANCE TO GROUND COMPLIES WITH
CODE.

NEW METER BY UTILITY.

M

3-4/0, #4G, 2"C

2P100A MB

120/240V 1Ø 3W ONE-LINE DIAGRAMC

E5

P
:\2

02
4\

20
24

12
0 

H
as

tin
gs

 F
is

h 
H

at
ch

er
y 

R
es

tr
oo

m
\W

or
ki

ng
 D

ra
w

in
gs

\2
02

41
20

 E
1.

dw
g,

 4
/1

9/
20

24
 1

:1
4:

14
 P

M
, c

ll



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To:  Hastings City Council  

From:  Travis J. Tate, P.E., Director of Public Services 

Subject:  Design Services from IAI for Alum Tank Improvements at the WWTP 

Meeting Date:  May 13, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve the proposal from Infrastructure Alternatives, Inc. (IAI) for design services to 

improve the Alum Tank at the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) for $12,900.  

Background Information:  

The WWTP Alum Tank Heater is not working and will need repair for it to operate in the 

wintertime. The heater allows the aluminum sulfate in the tank to stay at an acceptable 

temperature to be pumped at a common channel to the final clarifier. 

The existing heater is located beneath the tank and is not working. To fix it, the 

fiberglass tank will need to be cleaned by industrial cleaners prior to cutting into the tank to 

access where the heater is located. This alternative will be costly, will shorten the life of the 

fiberglass tank, and will remain the same, ineffective situation when a breakdown happens in 

the future. 

DPS staff and superintendent are proposing an alternative solution.  We will locate the 

alum tank inside the building with a circulating and heating pump.  This will heat the aluminum 

sulfate and will allow circulation within the tank.  An additional benefit to this is that we will be 

able to measure how much alum is used per day. 

Before we can make this improvement, a Part 41 permit must be approved by EGLE.  We 

proposed for IAI to design the improvements and prepare what is necessary for the application.  

Please review the attached IAI proposal for details.  We have compared this proposed fee 

amount and to other recent project proposals from other design companies and this is a 

competitive amount for the level of service in the scope. 

10.G



 
 

Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

Financial Implications:  

The Water and Sewer Fund has adequate funds available reserved for engineering.  

 

Attachments: 

 IAI Proposal Letter 



 
 

 
 

 
 

April 22, 2024 
 
 
Mr. Travis Tate, P.E. 
Director of Public Services 
City of Hastings 
201 E. State Street 
Hastings, MI 49058 
Email: ttate@hastingsmi.gov 
 
 
Re: Engineering Services Proposal – Part 41 Chemical Feed Improvements 
 City of Hastings, Barry County, Michigan 
 
Mr. Tate: 
 
Infrastructure Alternatives, Inc. (IAI) is pleased to present this proposal to the City of Hastings 
DPS for preparation of design drawings and Part 41 permit application for chemical feed 
improvements at the City’s wastewater treatment facility. The proposed scope of services is 
outlined below. 

Scope of Services 

The City of Hastings has requested a proposal for engineering evaluation and preparation of 
design plans for installation of a day tank to replace the existing aluminum sulfate feed system 
at the wastewater treatment facility. We understand that the City has experienced freezing 
issues with the current chemical feed system, which consists of a 7,500-gallon fiberglass 
reinforced plastic (FRP) outdoor storage tank pumped to a common channel to the final clarifier. 
 
The following addresses the work plan scope for completing the design drawings and Part 41 
permit application: 
 

1. Visit the wastewater treatment facility and evaluate current chemical feed equipment 
setup, discuss with operations staff, and review as-built record drawings. 

2. Prepare design plans and Part 41 permit application for proposed improvements. 
3. Prepare as-built drawings upon construction completion. 



 
 

 
 

Estimate of Cost 

Total estimated for engineering as outlined in the Scope of Services is $12,900. As a cost 
savings for the City, this estimate utilizes Ford’s capability for on-site construction oversight 
activities as part of daily operations at no added cost. Oversight includes construction 
observation, answering questions, taking notes and progress photos.  
 
We appreciate the opportunity to provide this proposal. We can begin immediately following 
receipt of written authorization. If there are any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate in 
contacting us at (616) 866-1600. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
Infrastructure Alternatives, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
cc. Verne Robins, VRobins@hastingsmi.gov 

Ford Hamman, fhamman@iaiwater.com 
 
 

Sara Soleau
Digitally signed by Sara 
Soleau 
Date: 2024.04.22 14:05:56 
-04'00'



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To:  City Council  

From:  Travis J. Tate, P.E., Director of Public Services 

Subject:  Cemetery Maintenance & Sexton Contract Extension Wickham Cemetery Care, LLC 

Meeting Date:  May 13, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Motion  to  approve  the  proposed  three  (3)  year  contract  extension with Wickham Cemetery 
Care, LLC,  for  maintenance and  sexton  services at Riverside Cemetery, for  the original 2018 
price of $1,605.77 per week or $83,500 per year. 

Background Information:  

The maintenance and sexton contract was bid in 2018 for the same amount In 2021 Wickham 

offered to maintain the same prices for 3 more years. Now, in 2024, as the contract extension is 

set to runout June 30th, 2024, they are offering to maintain the same prices for a three year 

contract extension. If the council does not want to extend the contract, then the city will send 

out RFPs. 

Financial Implications:  

It is in the budget every year to do this work. 

Attachments: 

 Original 2018 Bid Tab

 Wickham Extension Letter

10.H



City of Hastings 
Department of Public Services 

 
Riverside Cemetery Operations and Maintenance 

Bid Tabulation 
 

June 11, 2018 
 

The City of Hastings Department of Public Services received and opened sealed bids for the provision of maintenance 
and burial services at Riverside Cemetery on June 8, 2018 at 9:00 am at Hastings City Hall.  A tabulation of the bids 
received follows: 
 
BIDDER                                  
   
  Hallifax Services          

Hastings, MI           
 
  PRICE COMPONENTS and AMOUNTS: 
 

Spring & Summer Lawn Mowing and Maintenance:  
 

Unit price per week ‐            $1,629.00     
 

Total Spring and Summer Maintenance 
and Winter Snow & Ice Removal ‐        $84,708 /year   

 
Unit prices for the following items to be included as part of this bid proposal: 
 

Grave Opening and Closings:             
 

Adult – Monday thru Saturday 8am to 5pm ‐       
Unit price per grave opening and closing       $750.00 /each 

 
Sundays, Holidays ‐         
Unit price per grave opening and closing       $1,500.00 /each 

 
Children ‐ (Coffin 4ft or less) 

 
Monday thru Saturday 8am to 5pm ‐         
Unit price per grave opening and closing       $500.00 /each 

 
Sundays, Holidays ‐         
Unit price per grave opening and closing       $1,000.00 /each 

 
Cremains – Monday thru Saturday 8am to 5pm ‐      

          Unit price per grave opening and closing       $300.00 /each            
   

           Sundays, Holidays ‐       
           Unit price per grave opening and closing       $600.00 /each 

 
Monument Foundation and Markers: 
Unit price per square inch ‐          $0.50        

 



BIDDER                                  
   
  Wickham Cemetery Care           

Hastings, MI           
 
   
  PRICE COMPONENTS and AMOUNTS: 
 

Spring & Summer Lawn Mowing and Maintenance:  
 

Unit price per week ‐            $1,605.77     
 

Total Spring and Summer Maintenance 
and Winter Snow & Ice Removal ‐        $83,500 /year   

 
 
Unit prices for the following items to be included as part of this bid proposal. 
 

Grave Opening and Closings:             
 

Adult – Monday thru Saturday 8am to 5pm ‐       
Unit price per grave opening and closing       $550.00 /each 

 
Sundays, Holidays ‐         
Unit price per grave opening and closing       $650.00 /each 

 
Children ‐ (Coffin 4ft or less) 

 
Monday thru Saturday 8am to 5pm ‐         
Unit price per grave opening and closing       $300.00 /each 

 
Sundays, Holidays ‐         
Unit price per grave opening and closing       $350.00 /each 

 
Cremains – Monday thru Saturday 8am to 5pm ‐      

          Unit price per grave opening and closing       $150.00 /each             
 
           Sundays, Holidays ‐       
           Unit price per grave opening and closing       $200.00 /each 
 

Monument Foundation and Markers: 
Unit price per square inch ‐          $0.37        

 
 
 
     
 
 
Lee Hays 
Director of Public Services  
 





Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To:  City Council  

From:  Travis J. Tate, P.E., Director of Public Services 

Subject:  Riverside Cemetery Landscaping Proposal 

Meeting Date:  May 13, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve the proposal from Harder & Warner to provide improved landscaping at the 

Riverside Cemetery’s north entrance for a sum not to exceed $5,523.90. 

Background Information:  

The Advisory Board would like to improve landscaping at the primary north entrance at 

Riverside Cemetery. The existing landscaping is not adequate size or condition and could be 

more aesthetically pleasing. Therefore, I reached out to about seven landscapers in the greater 

area and received two that would be willing to do this work of designing and installing 

landscape areas. Both landscapers are qualified and had excellent preliminary designs and cost 

estimates, However the board chose Harder and Warner over KV landscaping mainly because of 

price. 

Financial Implications:  

There is $10,000 budgeted for this work. 

Attachments: 

 Harder and Warner Estimate

 KV Landscaping Estimate

10.I



City of Hastings 

Riverside Cemetery 

West State Road 

Hastings, MI 49058 

1. We would have the area staked by Miss Dig

2. We would then remove all exisƟng vegetaƟon.

3. We would prep the area with top soil

4. We would plant the large trees of your choice as the focal points to compliment the exisƟng entry arch.

5. We would then add shrubs and perennials for added color and texture.

6. The Shrub roses would give all summer color.

7. Your choice of perennials will add seasonal color.  AsƟlbe would bloom in the spring.  Coral Bells would

give all summer leaf color with a June flower.

MATERIALS FOR THIS PROJECT 



I have used all very mature plants as the cemetery is established and a very mature background. 

You may choose between 

1. 2 Jack Pears  They have the beauƟful white flowers in the Spring but are dwarf trees topping out at

approximately 15 feet.

2. 2 Columnar Maples  They stay narrow and offer great Fall Color

3. Keteleeri Junipers    They are very hardy and deer resistant.  They top out at around 16 feet.  They

are 12 feet at present.  They are perfect for year around green.  They are narrow at 4 to 6 feet wide.

They are the perfect columnar accent for the exisƟng arch!!

We would love you to tour the Garden Center to view and choose your own or I will happily choose the very 

best for you! 

2  Balled and Burlaped Jack Pears or Columnar Maples @ 450 = 900 

4 Knock out roses  @ 40 = 160 

6 small shrubs @ 40 = 240 

10 perennials @ 20 = 200 

8 yards Dark Brown Color Enhanced Mulch = 280 

1 yard topsoil = 35 

TOTAL MATERIALS    1815   TAX  108.90 = 1923.90 

Labor and Disposal  3000 

Total Project $ 4923.90

OpƟons 

If you want to add the Keteleeri Juipers, add 600 dollars   $5523.90 

If you want to go with 5‐foot Junipers or poƩed trees, subtract 300 dollars   $4623.90 





K V Landscapes            Hastings City  
6071 Depot St.                210 E State St.        
Alto, MI 49302        Hastings, MI 49058 
info@kvlandscapes.com 
 
 
Dear Mr. Travis Tate 

 

We very much appreciate the opportunity to do a design/bid on the Hastings Riverside 

Cemetery this year. We have over 20 years of design/build experience. We also have an 

outstanding crew that can execute the plan in a timely and professional manor. I have included 

the design and proposal for your consideration. This is just one option. If you would like to see 

any changes or if you have any other ideas that you would like to incorporate into the plan we 

can definitely make that happen. Please let me know if you have any question or concerns. 

 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Kris VanOtteren (owner) 
 
 
K V Landscapes LLC 
  



K V Landscapes            Riverside Cemetery  
5710 Whitneyville Ave              1003 W State Rd.  
Alto, MI 49302        Hastings, MI 49058 
(616) 340‐2463           
 

                     LANDSCAPING PROPOSAL 
 

 
‐TEAROUT AND REMOVAL OF EXISTING LANDSCAPE AND SOIL      $  975.00 
‐IRRIGATION RECONFIGURATION/REPAIR            1250.00 
(WE MAY PUT IN DRIP LINE INSTEAD OF THE CURRENT ROTORS) 
 
 
PLANTINGS 
 
10 DWARF KOREAN LILAC              $  550.00 
2 SERVICE BERRY TREES                 750.00 
10 GREEN VELVET BOXWOOD                 450.00 
8 KARL FORESTER GRASS                280.00 
16 ASSORTED CORAL BELLS                 400.00 
10 AUTUMN JOY SEDUM                180.00 
 
‐INSTALLATION OF MULCH IN LANDSCAPE BEDS            425.00 
‐TOPSOIL, PEAT, SAND PLANTING MIX              580.00 
‐BOULDER ACCENTS                  1150.00 
‐ALUMINUM EDGING                  255.00 
 
        LABOR              1880.00   
 
 

 
PROJECT TOTAL                 $  9125.00 
 
               
 
CLIENT APPROVAL: 
 
SIGNATURE_____________________________________________ 
 
 
DATE_____________________ 
 

 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer‐Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Approval of MABAS Agreement for Fire Mutual Aid 

Meeting Date: May 13, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to authorize the Michigan Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Association Agreement and the 

City of Hastings’ participation therein.  

Background Information:  

Authorization of this agreement and participation in MABAS would supersede any other mutual 

aid agreements we have with participating municipalities. Chief Jordan will be present at the 

council meeting to provide additional information about how the system operates.  

Financial Implications:  

None. 

Attachments: 

 Amended MABAS Agreement

10.J



AMENDED MICHIGAN MUTUAL AID BOX ALARM SYSTEM ASSOCIATION 
AGREEMENT 

 
Effective Date: _______________ 

 
BETWEEN 

 
PARTICIPATING POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS AS SIGNATORIES 

TO THIS INTERLOCAL GREEMENT 
 

This Agreement is entered into between the participating units of local 

government “Parties” that execute this Agreement and adopt its terms and conditions as 

provided by law.   This Agreement supersedes any and all prior Agreements and 

amendments to the Michigan Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Association Agreement. 

WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of Michigan, 1963, Article VII, Section 

28, authorizes units of local government to contract as provided by law; and,  

WHEREAS, the Urban Cooperation Act, of 1967, 1967 PA 7, MCL 124.501, et 

seq., provides that any political subdivision of Michigan or of another state may enter 

into interlocal agreements for joint exercise of power, privilege, or authority that 

agencies share in common and might each exercise separately; and,   

WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that it is in their best interests to enter 

into this Agreement to secure to each the benefits of mutual aid in fire protection, 

suppression, rescue and emergency medical assistance, hazardous materials control, 

technical rescue and/or other emergency support for an Emergency, Disaster, or other 

Serious Threat to Public Health and Safety; and,   

WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that it is in their best interests to form 

an association to provide for communications procedures, training, and other functions  

to further the provision of said protection of life and property during an Emergency,  

Disaster, or other Serious Threat to Public Health and Safety; and  



WHEREAS, the Constitution and people of the State of Michigan have long 

recognized the value of cooperation by and among the state and its political 

subdivisions; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

SECTION ONE 
 

Purpose 
 

It is recognized and acknowledged that in certain situations, such as natural 

disasters and man-made catastrophes, no political subdivision possesses all the 

necessary resources to cope with every possible Emergency, Disaster or Serious 

Threat to Public Safety, and an effective, efficient response can be best achieved by 

leveraging collective resources from other political subdivisions.  Further, it is 

acknowledged that coordination of mutual aid through the Michigan Mutual Aid Box 

Alarm System Association (MI-MABAS) is most effective for best practices and efficient 

provision of mutual aid.   

SECTION TWO 
 

Definitions 
 
The Parties agree that the following words and expressions, as used in this Agreement, 

whenever initially capitalized, whether used in the singular or plural, possessive or non-

possessive, either within or without quotation marks, shall be defined and interpreted  

as follows:  

A. “Agreement” means the MI-MABAS Agreement. 
 

B.  “Michigan Mutual Aid Box Alarm System” (“MABAS”) means a definite and 

prearranged plan whereby response and assistance is provided to a 



Requesting Party by an Assisting Party in accordance with the system 

established and maintained by MI-MABAS Members;  

C.  “Party” means a political subdivision which has entered into this 

Agreement as a signatory;  

D. “Requesting Party” means any Party requesting assistance under this 

agreement;  

E.  “Assisting Party” means any Party furnishing equipment, personnel, and/or 

services to a Requesting Party under this agreement;  

F.  “Emergency” means an occurrence or condition in a Party’s jurisdiction 

which results in a situation of such magnitude and/or consequence that it 

cannot be adequately handled by the Requesting Party and such that a 

Requesting Party determines the necessity of requesting aid;  

G.  “Disaster” means an occurrence or threat of widespread or severe 

damage, injury, or loss of life or property resulting from a natural or 

human-made cause, including fire, flood, snowstorm, ice storm, tornado, 

windstorm, wave action, oil spill, water contamination, utility failure, 

hazardous peacetime radiological incident, major transportation accident,  

  hazardous materials incident, epidemic, air contamination, or similar  

occurrences resulting from terrorist activities, riots, or civil disorders;  

H.  “Serious Threats to Public Health and Safety” means other threats or 

incidents such as those described as Disasters, of sufficient magnitude 

that the necessary public safety response threatens to overwhelm local 

resources and requires mutual aid or other assistance;  



I. “Division” means the geographically associated Parties which have been 

grouped for operational efficiency and representation of those Parties;  

J.  “Training” means the regular scheduled practice of emergency procedures 

during non-emergency drills to implement the necessary joint operations 

of MI-MABAS;  

K.  “Executive Board” means the governing body of MI-MABAS composed of 

Division representatives.  

L.  “Effective Date” means the date on which the Agreement is first filed with 

the Department of State, the Office of the Great Seal, and each county 

where Parties are located. 

M. “Special Operations Teams” means MI-MABAS recognized teams of 

personnel with the requisite training and skill for Hazardous Materials 

Response, Technical Rescue Response (including Strike Teams and 

Michigan Task Force 1) and Incident Management Teams.  

 

SECTION THREE 
 

Establishment of the Association, the Divisions 
 and Executive Board of MI-MABAS 

 
A. Establishment of the Association 

 
1. The Parties intend and agree that MI-MABAS is established as separate 

legal entity and public body corporate pursuant to the Michigan Urban 

Cooperation Act of 1967, 1967 PA, MCL 124.505(c) and this Agreement. 

2. Name of MI-MABAS.  The formal name of the Association is “Michigan 

Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Association”. 



3. Federal Tax Status.  The Parties intend that MI-MABAS and all Divisions 

shall be exempt from federal income tax under Section 115(1) of the 

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or corresponding provisions 

of any future tax code 

4. State and Local Tax Status.   The parties intend that the MI-MABAS and 

all Divisions shall be exempt from all State and local taxation including, but 

not limited to, sales, use, income, single business, and property taxes 

under the applicable provisions of the laws of the State. 

5. Title to MI-MABAS Property.  All property is owned by MI-MABAS as a 

separate legal entity.  MI-MABAS may hold any of its property in its own 

name or in the name of one (1) or more of the Parties or Divisions, as 

determined by the Parties. 

6. Principal Office. The principal office of the Association (“Principal Office”) 

shall be at such locations determined by the MI-MABAS Executive Board. 

B. Establishment of the Executive Board. 
 
An Executive Board shall be established to consider, adopt, and amend 

needed rules, procedures, by-laws and any other matters deemed necessary 

by the Parties.  The Executive Board shall consist of a member elected from 

each Division of MI-MABAS who shall serve as the voting representative of 

said Division of MI-MABAS matters, and may appoint a designee from his or 

her Division to serve temporarily in his or her stead.  Such designee shall 

have all rights and privileges attendant to a representative of the Division.  A 

President and Vice President shall be elected from the representatives of the 



Parties and shall serve without compensation.  The President and other 

officers shall coordinate the activities of the MI-MABAS Association.  

 

 

 

SECTION FOUR 
 

Duties of the Executive Board 
 

The Executive Board shall meet regularly to conduct business and to consider 

and publish the rules, procedures, and bylaws of the MI-MABAS Association, which 

shall govern the Executive Board meetings and such other relevant matters as the 

Executive Board shall deem necessary.  

SECTION FIVE 
 

Rules and Procedures 
 

Rules, procedures, and by laws of the MI-MABAS Association shall be 

established by the Member Units via the Executive Board as deemed necessary for the 

purpose of administrative functions, the exchange of information, and the common 

welfare of the MI-MABAS.  

SECTION SIX 
 

Authority and Action to Effect Mutual Aid 
 

A. The Parties hereby authorize and direct their respective Fire Chief or his or her 

designee to take necessary and proper action to render and/or request mutual aid 

from the other Parties in accordance with the policies and procedure established 

and maintained by the MI-MABAS Association. 



B.  Upon a Fire Department’s receipt of a request from another Party for Fire 

Services, the Fire Chief, the ranking officer on duty, or other officer as designated 

by the Fire Chief shall have the right to commit the requested Firefighters, other 

personnel, and Fire Apparatus to the assistance of the requesting Party. The aid 

rendered shall be to the extent of available personnel and equipment not 

required for adequate protection of the territorial limits of the Responding Party.  

The judgment of the Fire Chief, or his or her designee, of the Responding Party 

shall be final as to the personnel and equipment available to render aid.  

C. An authorized representative of the Party which has withheld or refused to 

provide requested assistance under this Agreement shall immediately notify the 

Requesting Party, and shall submit an explanation for the refusal.  

 
SECTION SEVEN 

 
Jurisdiction Over Personnel and Equipment 

 
Personnel dispatched to aid a party pursuant to this Agreement shall at all times 

remain employees of the Assisting Party, and are entitled to receive benefits and/or 

compensation to which they are otherwise entitled to under the Michigan Workers’ 

Disability Compensation Act of 1969, any pension law, or any act of Congress.  

Personnel dispatched intrastate to assist a party pursuant to this Agreement continue to 

enjoy all powers, duties, rights, privileges, and immunities as provided by Michigan Law. 

When Parties are dispatched pursuant to the Emergency Management Assistance 

Compact (EMAC), the Parties shall adhere to all provisions of the EMAC.  Personnel 

rendering aid shall report for direction and assignment at the scene of the emergency to 

the Incident Commander of the Requesting Party.  



SECTION EIGHT 
 

Compensation for Aid 
 

Equipment, personnel, and/or services provided pursuant to this Agreement, 

absent a state or federal declaration of emergency or disaster, excluding resources for 

Special Operations Teams, shall be at no charge to the Requesting Party for the first 

eight hours.  Any expenses recoverable from third parties shall be equitably distributed 

among Responding Parties.  Requests for a response from any MI-MABAS Special 

Operations Team may require full and complete reimbursement to the responding Team 

for all expenses, including but not limited to, expenses for equipment, personnel, 

management and administration and all other services provided at an incident.  The 

Executive Board shall adopt fee schedules that establish rates for Special Operations 

Team responses.  Nothing herein shall operate to bar any recovery of funds from any 

state or federal agency under any existing statues. The Parties reserve the right to 

waive any charges to a Requesting Party.  

SECTION NINE 
 

Insurance 
 

Each Party shall procure and maintain, at its sole and exclusive expense, 

insurance coverage, including comprehensive liability, personal injury, property 

damage, worker’s compensation, and, if applicable, emergency medical service 

professional liability, with minimum limits of $1,000,000 auto and $1,000,000 combined 

single limit general liability and professional liability.  The obligations of the Section may 

be satisfied by a Party’s membership in a self-insurance pool, a self-insurance plan, or 

arrangement with an insurance provider approved by the state of jurisdiction.  The 



Executive Board may require that copies or other evidence of compliance with the 

provisions of this Section be provided by the Parties to the Executive Board.    

SECTION TEN  
 

Liability 
 

Each Party will be solely responsible for the acts of its own employees, agents, 

and subcontractors, the costs associated with those acts, and the defense of those acts. 

The Parties shall not be responsible for any liability or costs associated with those acts 

and the defense of those acts for Parties outside of their political jurisdictions.  It is 

agreed that none of the Parties shall be liable for failure to respond for any reason to 

any request for Fire Services or for leaving the scene of an Incident with proper notice 

after responding to a request for service.    

  



SECTION ELEVEN 
 

No Waiver of Governmental Immunity 
 

All of the privileges and immunities from liability, and exemptions from laws, 

ordinances and rules, and all pensions, relief, disability, worker’s compensation and 

other benefits which apply to the activity of Parties, officers, agency, or employees of 

any public agents or employees of any public agency when performing their respective 

functions within the territorial limits for their respective agencies, shall apply to the same 

degree and extent to the performance of such functions and duties of such Parties, 

officers, agents, or employees extraterritorially under the provision of this Agreement. 

No provision of the Agreement is intended, nor shall any provision of this Agreement be 

construed, as a waiver by any Party of any governmental immunity as provided by the 

Act or otherwise under law.  

SECTION TWELVE 
 

Term 
 

A. The existence of MI-MABAS commences on the Effective Date and continues 

until terminated in accordance with this Section.   

B. Any Party may withdraw, at any time, from this Agreement for any reason, or for 

no reason at all, upon thirty (30) days written notice to the Association. The 

withdrawal of any Party shall not terminate or have any effect upon the provisions 

of this Agreement so long as the MI-MABAS remains composed of at least two 

(2) Parties.  Parties withdrawing from MI-MABAS and subsequently requesting a 

mutual aid resource from a MI-MABAS member may be subject to reasonable 

fees for that resource according to the fee schedule established, and periodically 

reviewed and updated, by the Executive Board.  



C.  This Agreement shall continue until terminated by the first to occur of the 

following:  

(i)  The Association consists of less than two (2) Parties; or,  
 

(ii)  A unanimous vote of termination by the total membership of the Executive 
Board.  

 
SECTION THIRTEEN  

 
Miscellaneous 

 
A. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the 

Parties. The language of this Agreement shall be construed as a whole according 

to its fair meaning and not construed strictly for or against any party. The Parties 

have taken all actions and secured all approvals necessary to authorize and 

complete this Agreement.  

B. Severability of Provisions. If a Court of competent jurisdiction finds any provision 

of this Agreement invalid or unenforceable, then that provision shall be deemed 

severed from this Agreement.  The remainder of this Agreement shall remain in 

full force. 

C. Governing Law/Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement is made and 

entered into in the State of Michigan and shall in all respects be interpreted, 

enforced, and governed under the laws of the State of Michigan.  

D. Captions. The captions, headings, and titles in this Agreement are intended for 

the convenience of the reader and not intended to have any substantive meaning 

and are not to be interpreted as part of this Agreement.  



E. Terminology. All terms and words used in this Agreement, regardless of the 

numbers or gender in which they are used, are deemed to include any other 

number and any other gender as the context may require.  

F. Recitals. The Recitals shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement.  
 
G.  Amendment. The Agreement may be amended or an alternative form of the 

Agreement adopted only upon written agreement and approval of the governing 

bodies of all Parties.  Amendments to this Agreement shall be filed with the 

Department of State, the Office of the Great Seal, each county of the State where 

a Party is located, and any other governmental agency, office, and official 

required by law.  The undersigned unit of local government or public agency 

hereby adopts, subscribes, and approves this Agreement to which this signature 

page will be attached, and agrees to be a party and be bound by the terms.  

H.  Compliance with Law.  The Association shall comply with all federal and State 

laws, rules, regulations, and orders applicable to this Agreement.  

I. No Third Party Beneficiaries. Except as expressly provided herein, this 

Agreement does not create, by implication or otherwise, any direct or indirect 

obligation, duty, promise, benefit, right of indemnification (i.e., contractual, legal, 

equitable, or by implication) right of subrogation as to any Party’s rights in this 

Agreement, or any other right of any kind in favor of any individual or legal entity.  

J.  Counterpart Signatures. This Agreement may be signed in counterpart. The 

counterparts taken together shall constitute one (1) agreement.  

K.  Permits and Licenses. Each Party shall be responsible for obtaining and 

maintaining, throughout the term of this Agreement, all licenses, permits, 

certificates, and governmental authorizations for its employees and/or agents 



necessary to perform all its obligations under this Agreement. Upon request, a 

Party shall furnish copies of any permit, license, certificate or governmental 

authorization to the requesting party.  

L.  No Implied Waiver. Absent a written waiver, no fact, failure, or delay by a Party to 

pursue or enforce any rights or remedies under this Agreement shall constitute a 

waiver of those rights with regard to any existing or subsequent breach of this 

Agreement. No waiver of any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement, 

whether by conduct or otherwise, in one or more instances shall be deemed or 

construed as a continuing waiver of any term, condition, or provision of this 

Agreement.  No waiver by either Party shall subsequently affect its right to 

require strict performance of this Agreement.  

M.  Notices. Notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 

personally delivered, sent by express delivery service, certified mail, or first class 

U.S. mail postage prepaid to the person appointed to the governing board by the 

governing body of the participating agency.  

 

 _____________________________________  
Political Entity  
 
 _____________________________________  
Chief Executive Official  
          
 _____________________________________  
Date  
 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Set Public Hearing of Necessity for Parking Lot Special Assessment District 

Meeting Date: May 13, 2024

Recommended Action: 

Motion to set a public hearing on May 28, 2024, at 7:00 PM to determine the necessity of a 

special assessment district for downtown parking areas. 

Background Information: 

A Parking Special Assessment District (SAD) was created to help cover the cost of some parking 

lot maintenance and snow removal in the downtown area. 

City staff is recommending the authorization of the Parking SAD and placing the assessment 

on the summer 2024 tax bills. This public hearing will be to address the necessity of this SAD 

for downtown parking areas. 

Financial Implications: 

If the assessment for the Parking SAD is not approved, the city’s General Fund will have to 

absorb the costs of maintenance and snow removal in the downtown parking lots. 

Attachments: 

None 

10.K.



2024 May Council 
Report 

1 

To:  The City Council  

From:  Travis J. Tate, P.E., Director of Public Services 

Subject:  DPS Monthly Council Report 

Meeting Date: May 13, 2024 

DDA Streetscape Project: 

Katerberg VerHage has most of the concrete poured on the South block between Jefferson and 
Church Street. They will begin this week or next removing concrete on the South block between Michigan 
and Jefferson.  They will continue moving East on the South side 3‐4 weeks at a time. 

12.A



2024 May Council 
Report 

 

2 
 

 
 

 



2024 May Council 
Report 

 

3 
 

 



2024 May Council 
Report 

 

4 
 

Green and Market Street Improvements Project:   
 

Moore & Bruggink, Inc. is continuing to work on preliminary layout and utility design. They are 

working on a design the Green Street with an alternative cross section, to allow for bike paths on each 

side.  This will widen the road a few feet from the Hospital to Park Street. So, the alignment likely will 

change slightly from existing, to minimize the amount of trees to be removed, in particular large ones.  

This improvement to the road will encourage bicycle traffic from Fish Hatchery Park to adjacent 

neighborhoods, schools and downtown.  

We are also looking at an alternative to include a round about at Market Street.  This primarily 

will encourage traffic calming and flow at the intersection.   Also two pedestrian islands are looked at 

to be added at the hospital for traffic calming and pedestrian safety. 

 

DWAM Lead Line Replacement Program: 
 

DPS has over half of the approximately 25 services to be replaced East of Michigan, West of 
Hanover, South of State Road and North of the Thornapple River.   

Below is a photo of the ArcGIS map we use to keep track of water services in the city.  As you can 
see the green dots represents verified acceptable services determined by EGLE, the red represent verified 
lead services, the purple represents verified galvanized steel, and the gray represent unknown that still 
need to be verified. 

 



2024 May Council 
Report 

 

5 
 

 

Hydrant Flushing: 

Hydrant Flushing was completed last week. DPS is using ArcGIS to keep track and plan for crews to 
coordinate activity better. 

 

 

Other Projects Include: 

Chip Seal for Apple Street: 

Boltwood to Broadway, & Broadway to Industrial Park) and West State Road (Glenwood to West City 
Limits. 

 

Spring Leaf & Brush Pick‐up: 

Leaf & Brush pick‐up Began April 15 and ended May 6. 

 

 



2024 May Council 
Report 

 

6 
 

Elevated Storage Tanks Security System: 

Completed two weeks ago. It is now operational.  If the alarm is set, the system will automatically inform 
Barry County 911. 

 

DWSRF and USDA Loan Applications: 
 

Moore & Bruggink, the consulting engineer is preparing USDA RD Loan applications and DWSRF 

Plan application this Spring. 

 
 
Upcoming Summer Projects: 

 

 Valve Exercising Program 

 Parking Lot 8 Improvement 

 Cemetery Memorial Wall Construction 

 WTP Generator Wall 

 Streetline Painting 

 Final Clarifier #2 Upgrade Engineering 
 

 
I will gladly answer any questions that Council members have at the meeting. 

 

Respectfully, 
 
 

Travis Tate, P.E. 

DPS Director 



Fire Department Council Report April 2024  

The department responded to 49 calls for service: 19 in the city, 30 in the townships and 2 mutual aid.  Our 

members spent a total of 93 hours responding to calls for service. Total calls for service in 2024 YTD is 247.  

Training  

Our members trained a total of 42 hours. We continued to focus on apparatus awareness, pump operations and 

radio communications for the paid‐on call members.   Dylan Mead and Jacob Neil are ready to wrap up Fire 

Academy.  They both have met the required skills in class to take their final tests in early May for their Firefighter 1 

and 2 Certifications. Faith Stauffer, who came on board last year, has passed all class skills to take the National 

Registry test in early May to be a certified MFR. Please join me in wishing them the best of luck in their upcoming 

tests.  

Smoke/ CO detector installations 

We installed 12 smoke detectors and 6 carbon monoxide detectors in April.  We are continuing to push and increase 

awareness to this program, which is sponsored by the State of MI and the United Way.  

Department activities  

We have continued to make changes within  the department, to meet reporting and response guidelines so as a 

department we meet NFPA and OSHA guidelines. One goal that is getting close to be complete is the departments 

conversion to the 800 MHZ radio system. We are currently conducting most of our communications on 800 but plan 

to move 100% in May. We will be the second fire department based in the county to move to the 800 MHz State 

System, although all law enforcement have been on 800 MHz for many years.  

Chief’s comments 

 Two new members joined the department in April, Noah Strimback as a probationary firefighter and Isabelle Storm, 

who comes to us already licensed as an EMT.  Isabelle and Noah will be pursuing their Firefighter certification this 

coming year. Both serve in the National Guard; we are excited to have them on board and look forward to working 

with both going forward.  

Respectfully, 

Chief Mark Jordan

12.B



   

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 



   

 

 

 



12.C



















City of Hastings 

Downtown Development Authority 

 DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

April 18, 2024 

1. Meeting Call to Order and Roll Call—

The meeting was called to order at 8:05 a.m. by Woods. 

Roll Call –  

Present: Albrecht, Baker, Button, Hatfield, Peterson, Tossava, Woods 
Absent: Ulberg, Wiswell 
City Staff and Appointees: Hoke, King, Ponsetto, Resseguie 
Others Present:  

2. Pledge to the Flag

3. Approval/Additions/Deletions to Agenda –

Motion by Hatfield, second by Baker, to approve the agenda as presented. 

All ayes, motion carried. 

4. Approval of Minutes –

Motion by Hatfield, second by Baker, to approve the minutes of the March 15, 2024, DDA meeting as 

presented. 

All ayes, motion carried. 

5. Financial Statements & Budget for Review –

King presented the financial statement and DDA budget for review and answered questions from the DDA 

regarding the financial statement and budget formats. 

6. Façade and BEIG Update‐

King presented a summary of façade grant and BEIG Loan activities. 

7. Open Public Comment and Discussion – None

13.A



 8.  Old Business‐  

A. Outfront geofencing information 

King answered questions from DDA Board members about the City’s contract with Outfront Media 

geofencing and billboard designs. The DDA board requested that a sales representative from Outfront Media 

attend the May 16, 2024, DDA Meeting. 

 9.  New Business‐‐ None 

10.  DDA Member Comment –  

Board members briefly discussed the streetscape and Barry‐Roubaix. King discussed the CopperRock project 

at the former Royal Coach site. 

11.  Open Public Comment and Discussion – None 

12.  Adjournment 

Motion by Tossava, second by Hatfield, to adjourn. 

All ayes, motion carried. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:21 a.m. 

 

 

_______________________                                         ____________________________ 

 Patty Woods, Chair                                                          Deb Button, Secretary 

 

 

Prepared by: Sandra Ponsetto, City of Hastings 



Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
DRAFT MINUTES 

April 25, 2024  

The meeting was called to order at 8:03 a.m.by Neil. 

1. Roll Call

Present: Cowan, Davis, Hatfield, Neil, Tossava 
Absent: Holland, Schneiderhaan, Tolles 
Others Present: Moyer Cale, King, Ponsetto, Resseguie, Jason Fogg (community 
member) 

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Approval of the Agenda

Motion by Hatfield, second by Davis, to approve the agenda as presented. 

All ayes, motion carried. 

4. Approval of Minutes

Motion by Hatfield, second by Davis, to approve the minutes as presented. 

All ayes, motion carried 

5. Public Hearing- None

6. Receive Financial Statements –

King gave the LDFA an update on the LDFA/BRA financial report. 

Motion by Hatfield, second by Cowan, to accept the financial statement and put it on 
file. 

All ayes, motion carried. 

Tolles entered the meeting at 8:12 a.m. 

7. Old Business- None

8. New Business –

13.B



A. Discuss the Summary of Proposed Improvements from the LDFA Restated
Plan Dates June 12, 2017, and Discuss Improvements Achieved and
Viability of Proposed Improvements-

King discussed the formation of the LDFA and the LDFA’s summary of proposed 
improvements, which were included in the Restated LDFA Plan of 2017. King stated the 
summary of proposed improvements have either been completed or rendered obsolete. 
Because of this, King stated staff is recommending LDFA adopt Resolution 01-2024 and 
forward it to City Council with the recommendation to dissolve the LDFA via ordinance.  

Motion by Hatfield, second by Davis, to adopt Resolution 01-2024 and forward it to the 
City Council with the recommendation to dissolve the LDFA via ordinance. 

Ayes: Cowan, Davis, Hatfield, Neil, Tolles, Tossava 
Nays: 
Absent: Holland, Schneiderhaan 

All ayes, motion carried. 

9. Public Comments and Communications Concerning Items Not on the Agenda-
None 

10. LDFA Members Comments –

King spoke on behalf of himself, Moyer-Cale, and Ponsetto, thanking the LDFA Board 
for their service to the community.  

Both King and Moyer-Cale stated the BRA would continue as a board. King stated the 
CopperRock project on the former Royal Coach site will likely utilize brownfield 
redevelopment plans. 

11. Adjournment-

Motion by Neil, second by Hatfield, to adjourn. 

All ayes, motion carried. 

The meeting adjourned 8:53 a.m. 

__________________________ __________________________ 

Clint Neil Brad Tolles 
Chair Secretary 

Prepared by: Sandra Ponsetto, City of Hastings 



Hastings Public Library Board of Trustees 
 Minutes 

Date: May 1, 2024 – 4:30PM 
Location: Hastings Public Library, 227 E. State St., Hastings, MI 49058 

Community Room 

1. CALL TO ORDER
The Meeting was called to order by Chloe Kelly at 4:30 p.m.
• Board members present:  Jane Cybulski, Carol Dwyer, Sam Cale, Chloe

Kelly, Rebecca Lectka, Norm Barlow, Brenda Stacy, Kelli Newberry.  and
Cloe Oliver.

• Also present were Peggy Hemerling and David Edelman.

2. AGENDA: No changes.

3. MINUTES:    Cloe Oliver motioned to approve the April 1, 2024, minutes, seconded
by Sam Cale.  Motion approved.

4. FINANCIALS:
a. March 2024 Invoices and Budget Report:  Cloe Oliver motioned to

approve the financials, seconded by Brenda Stacy. Motion approved.

5. LIBRARY DIRECTOR REPORTS: April 2024

6. COMMITTEES
a. Budget and Finance –
b. Building and Grounds –
c. Personnel –
d. Policy –
e. Marketing-

7. NEW BUSINESS
a. Motion to consider approving the proposal from Hawthorne Masonry, LLC

for tuck pointing and sealing the exterior of the building for $20,975.00
made by Kelli Newberry, seconded by Cloe Oliver. Roll call vote as
follows: Kelli Newberry – yes, Rebecca Lectka – yes, Jane Cybulski – yes,
Brenda Stacy – yes, Carol Dwyer – yes, Norm Barlow – yes, Sam Cale –
yes, Cloe Oliver – yes.  Motion passes.

8. NEXT MEETING DATE
a. Next board meeting on Monday, June 3, 2024, at 4:30 p.m.

9. ADJOURNMENT: Meeting was adjourned at 4:47 p.m.

13.C



Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
28 29 30 01 02 03 04

05 06 07 08 09 10 11

7:00 PM PC 
4:30 PM Library Board 3:00 PM Cemetery

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

7:00 PM Council 10:30 AM Parks 
5:30 PM JPC (Rutland) 8:00 AM DDA

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

7:00 PM ZBA 4:30 PM Airport 8:00 AM LDFA/BRA

26 27 28 29 30 31 01

City Hall Closed 
Memorial Day 7:00 PM Council*

02 03 04 05 06 07 08

2024

PC (Planning Commision)
ZBA (Zoning Board of Appeals)
DDA(Downtown Development Authority)
LDFA/BRA (Local Development Finance Authority/ Brownfield Redevelopment Authority)
JPA (Hastings/Rutland Joint Plannina Alliance)
JPC (Hastings/Rutland Joint Planning Commission)

MAY 13.D


	0_Exec Summary  05 13 2024.pdf
	4.0 Agenda 05 13 2024.pdf
	5.0 Workshop Minutes 04 22 2024.pdf
	5.1 Meeting Minutes 04 22 2024.pdf
	8.A_Proclamation Poppy Days May 17-18 2024.pdf
	8.B_Proclamation Motorcycle Awareness Month.pdf
	9.A_Memorial Day Parade Request 05 27 2024.pdf
	9.B_Invoices 05 13 2024.pdf
	10.A_Hastings Pride Committee Festival.pdf
	10.B_Resolution 2024-12 FY 24-25 Budget.pdf
	10.C_Resolution 2024-12 LDFA.pdf
	10.D_Resolution 2024-13 MDOT Agreement.pdf
	10.E_Directv Video Franchise Agreement Extension.pdf
	10.F_Fish Hatchery Restroom Construction.pdf
	10.G_Alum Tank Improvements.pdf
	10.H_Cemetery Contract Extension.pdf
	10.I_Cemetery Landscaping.pdf
	10.J_Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Association Agreement.pdf
	10.K_Public Hearing Special Assessment District.pdf
	12.A_Director DPS Report.pdf
	12.B_Council Report 5-13-2024.pdf
	12.C_Director's report 050624.pdf
	13.A_04.18.24 DRAFT DDA Minutes.pdf
	13.B_4.25.2024 DRAFT LDFA  Minutes.pdf
	13.C_Library Board minutes DRAFT 050624.pdf
	13.D_May 2024 Meeting Calendar.pdf

	COUNTY OF BARRY STATE OF MICHIGAN: 
	Procurement Number: 2024-05001
	Bid Name: Fish Hatchery Restrooms
	Opening Date  Time: May 7th @ 10AM
	Name: Bultsma Construction
	Amount: 447,058.20
	Name_2: TJM Services LLC
	Amount_2: 786,530.80
	Name_3: First Peninsula Contractors
	Amount_3: 587,863.00
	Name_4: 
	Amount_4: 
	Name_5: 
	Amount_5: 
	Name_6: 
	Amount_6: 
	Name_7: 
	Amount_7: 
	Name_8: 
	Amount_8: 
	Name_9: 
	Amount_9: 
	Opening 1: Travis, Amy, and Sarah
	Opening 2: Bultsma Construction and First Peninsula Contractors
	1: 
	2: 
	Bid Granted to: 
	PO: 
	ISSUED TO: 
	ON: 
	Process Final Sign Off By: 
	ON_2: 


